
 
 

NOTICE OF THE  
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

 

The regular meeting of the Village Board is scheduled for  
Tuesday, September 1, 2020 beginning at 7:30 p.m.  

 

A copy of the agenda for this meeting is attached hereto and  
can be found at www.tinleypark.org. 

 

 
NOTICE - MEETING MODIFICATION DUE TO COVID-19 

 

Pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-07, Executive Order 2020-10, Executive 
Order 2020-18, Executive Order 2020-32, Executive Order 2020-33, Executive Order 2020-39, 
and Executive Order 2020-44, which collectively suspends the Illinois Open Meetings Act 
requirements regarding in-person attendance by members of a public body during the duration of 
the Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation, issued on June 26, 2020, the members of the Village 
Board will be participating in the meeting through teleconference.  
 
A livestream of the electronic meeting will be broadcasted at Village Hall. Pursuant to 
Governor's Executive Order No. 2020-43 and CDC guidelines, no more than 50 people or 50% 
of the maximum capacity will be allowed in the Council Chambers at any one time, so long as 
attendees comply with social distancing guidelines. Anyone in excess of maximum limit will be 
asked to wait in another room with live feed to the meeting until the agenda item for which the 
person or persons would like to speak on is being discussed or until the open floor for public 
comments. 
  

Public comments or requests to speak may also be emailed in advance of the meeting to 
clerksoffice@tinleypark.org or placed in the Drop Box at the Village Hall by noon on Tuesday, 
September 1, 2020.   
 
 

Kristin A. Thirion 
Clerk 
Village of Tinley Park  

http://www.tinleypark.org/
mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org


R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 1

1

MEETING NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regular Meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, September 1, 2020, beginning at 7:30 PM in 
the Council Chambers at the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 South Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois.

7:30 PM CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

ITEM #1

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ACTION: Discussion - Consider approval of agenda as written or amended.

COMMENTS:
 
 

ITEM #2

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD 
MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 18, 2020.
   

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of minutes as written or amended.

COMMENTS:
 
 

ITEM #3

SUBJECT: CONDUCT SWEARING IN CEREMONY FOR FIREFIGHTERS - Trustee Brennan

ACTION: Discussion: The following firefighters will be sworn in by the Village Clerk:

 Firefighter Paul Cordero
 Firefighter Brian Wagner  

No specific action is required.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 2

2

ITEM #4

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPOINTING JUSTICE BUTTALA TO THE POSITION OF 
MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN, EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 2, 2020 - President 
Vandenberg

ACTION: Discussion: With the retirement of an employee in May 2020, the position of Maintenance 
Technician became available in our Public Works department. Based on recommendations 
from Water-Sewer Superintendent Joseph Fitzpatrick and the current Director of Public 
Works, John Urbanski, Seasonal II employee Justice Buttala was identified as a highly 
qualified candidate based on his work performance.  Buttala had previously interviewed for 
the position in January 2020.  Buttala is a graduate of Victor J. Andrew High School and has 
previously worked as a Summer Seasonal, and as a Seasonal II since October 21, 2019.  
Consider appointing Justice Buttala to the position of Maintenance Technician, 
effective September 2, 2020.

COMMENTS:

ITEM #5

SUBJECT:

ACTION:

CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2020-O-049 AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS 
OF TITLE III CHAPTER 32 OF THE TINLEY PARK VILLAGE CODE PERTAINING 
TO THE MERGER OF THE COMMUNITY RESOURCES COMMISSION AND 
MARKETING AND BRANDING COMMISSION - Trustee Berg

Discussion: The Village currently has two (2) commissions, the Community Resource 
Commission and the Marketing and Branding Commission, which both work to promote 
the Village.  At the August 18, 2020 Committee of the Whole meeting, staff proposed a 
restructure that would combine both commissions into one (1) with the purpose of 
supporting the Village’s current goals and objectives.  The new commission would have 
three (3) subcommittees that will work collaboratively to support Tinley Park activities 
and events, the Village’s tourism initiatives and brand, and the Village’s community 
involvement and engagement strategies.  The Committee of the Whole was in favor of 
moving forward with this recommendation, and a draft ordinance was prepared by the 
Village attorney. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption. 

COMMENTS:



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 3

3

ITEM #6

SUBJECT:

ACTION:

CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2021 - President Vandenberg
Discussion: New members/commissions are noted with an asterisk (*).

                  Civil Service
Andre’ Ashmore, Jr. – 3-year term*

Economic Commercial
Jay Walsh, Chair
Dennis Reidy
Dino Sanfilippo
Richard Osty
Christine Obbagy
Brian Potter
Chris Shoemaker
Adam Guldan*
Chris Schiller*

Environmental Enhancement
Aireen Arellano, Chair *
Frank Markowicz
Jeffery Loftus
John Houdek
Brandon Wigboldy*
Evan Vogt*
Nicole Ryan*
Brenna Molinare*
Donna Gillespie*

Emergency Telephone System Board (ETSB)
Trustee Brennan
Trustee Galante*
Trustee Brady*
Pat Carr
Matthew Walsh
Forest Reeder
John Urbanski
Lisa Kortum*

Senior Services 
Michael Cutrano, Chair
Robert Hayes
Vicki Hayes
Rosemarie Bauer
Marcia A. Hecht
Phyllis Groberski
Andy Ashmus
Grant Steeve
Samuel Avalos*

Sister Cities
Pat Rea, Chair
Roxane Tyssen
Lucas Hawley
Marilyn E. Bill
Jim Muller
George Rohde
Sarah Krause
Rob Zimmer*
Michele Rons*
Julie Dekker (Associate)*
Kurt Dekker (Associate)*

Veterans 
Doug Rasmussen (William), Chair
Norm Pestlin
Jim Hudik (VFW Commander)
Jim Taylor (American Legion Commander)
Christine Hansley ( AVMRA VFW Aux.)
Robert Baisa
Karen Tobola
Jimmy Hunter
Georges Sanon
Don Tomich (Marine Corp. League Rep.)*
Robert Bullard (Submarine Rep.)*
Eva J. Reyes (AVMRA - Associate)
Ken Wrezzes (Associate)

Marketing*
Daniel Fitzgerald, Chair
Mike Cutrano
Janet Czuchra
Al Siegers
Barbara Rose Whalen
Michael Sevier
Debbie Melchert
Beth McKernan
Julie Dekker
Jackie Bobbitt
Dennis Suglich
Stephanie Pyrzynski
Bernie Greenawalt
Jim Green
Kelly Oswald
Paul Yedwofski
Carol Racine
Carol Bradtke (Assoc)
Courtney Rourke (Assoc)
Nick Markowiczz (Assoc)
Jason Freeland (Assoc)
Nick Halikias (Assoc)



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - S e p t e m b e r  1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 4

4

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #7

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM PEOPLES ANIMAL WELFARE SOCIETY 
(P.A.W.S.), TO CONDUCT A RAFFLE THROUGH SUNDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 
2020 WITH THE MAXIMUM VALUE OF THE PRIZE NOT TO EXCEED $1,850.  
WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN AT PA.W.S., 8301 191ST STREET.

B. CONSIDER PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,387,312.77 AS LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS 
DATED AUGUST 21, AND AUGUST 28, 2020.

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of consent agenda items.

COMMENTS:  
 
 

ITEM #8

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ORDINANCE 2020-O-050 APPROVING A SPECIAL USE FOR A 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT WITH EXCEPTIONS RELATED TO PHASE I OF 
THE REDEVELOPMENT OF TINLEY PARK PLAZA LOCATED AT 15915-16205 S. 
HARLEM AVENUE - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner, Andrew Balzar, Brixmor/IA Tinley Park Plaza, LLC (property 
owner), is seeking a Special Use for a Planned Unit Development with exceptions related to 
Phase I of the redevelopment of Tinley Park Plaza located at 15915-16205 S. Harlem 
Avenue.  The project will include the demolition of 87,000 sq. ft of the existing building on 
the northern portion of the center and the construction of the core and shell of approximately 
66,600 sq. ft. for retail uses including façade improvements, landscaping, and parking lot 
improvements.

The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on August 20, 2020, concerning the Planned 
Unit Development and voted 5-0 to recommend approval of the Special Use and adopt the 
Findings of Fact in accordance with the plans as listed in the list of “Review Plans” as noted 
in the staff report dated August 20, 2020.  This Ordinance is eligible for first reading.

COMMENTS:                     
 

















Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 1

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE TRUSTEES,
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,

ILLINOIS, HELD AUGUST 18, 2020

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the 
Council Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL on 
August 18, 2020.   Mayor Pro Tem Glotz called this meeting to order at 7:59 p.m. 

At this time, Mayor Pro Tem Glotz stated this meeting is being conducted pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s 
disaster proclamation and Public Act 101-0640, which amends requirements of the Open Meetings Act due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Pursuant to the same, the Village Board finds that it would be impractical to 
conduct an in-person meeting with all members present. Elected officials confirmed they were able to hear 
one another.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Clerk Thirion called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following:

President Pro Tem: Michael W. Glotz  
Village Clerk: Kristin A. Thirion

                         Trustees: Cynthia A. Berg (Participated electronically)
William P. Brady
William A. Brennan
Diane M. Galante 
Michael G. Mueller

Absent: Jacob C. Vandenberg, Village President

Also Present: 
Village Manager: David Niemeyer 
Asst. Village Manager: Patrick Carr
Village Attorney: Patrick Connelly

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to approve the agenda as written or 
amended for this meeting. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: 
None.  Absent: Vandenberg.  Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried. 

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Galante, to approve and place on file the 
minutes of the regular and special Village Board Meetings held on August 4, 2020.  Vote on roll call. Ayes: 
Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz 
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by President Pro Tem Glotz , seconded by Trustee Mueller, to appoint, JOHN 
URBANSKI TO THE POSITION OF PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR. The Village’s previous Public 
Works Director retired in March after serving the Village for over 30 years. Effective April 1st, of this year, 
John Urbanski (then Assistant Public Works Director), was appointed by the Board to serve as Interim Public 
Works Director. Since his appointment, John Urbanski has continued to perform highly in the role. John 

Page | 13AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 2

began working with the Village in 1999, and has performed the roles of Firefighter (promoted to rank of 
Lieutenant) Laborer, Truck Driver Laborer, Facilities Foreman, Facilities and Fleet Superintendent, and 
Assistant Public Works Director. John has his Bachelor’s Degree in Technical Business Management with a 
concentration in Construction Project Management.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. After receiving 
congratulations from the Village Board, Mr. Urbanski thanked the Board and Village Managers for 
promoting him. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in 
writing, telephonically or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or 
requests to comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  
Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz 
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adopt and place on file, 
RESOLUTION 2020-R-083 AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GOVTEMPUSA FOR PROVISION OF A PLANNING 
MANAGER.  It is recommended that the Village renew the Professional Services Agreement with 
GovTemps that expires September 4, 2020, to fill the position of Planning Manager in our Community 
Development Department. This contract renews Paula Wallrich's service as Planning Manager from 
September 7, 2020, through September 10, 2021. The total base compensation paid is $77.49 per hour with 
$55.35 of that being paid to the contract employee. The estimated number of hours worked will be 24 hours a 
week. This change is consistent with the strategic roadmap as laid out by the Community Development 
Department.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz 
stated he his glad to have Ms. Wallrich working with the Village and thanked her for her service. Mayor Pro 
Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically or in-
person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via telephone 
received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, 
Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Galante, to consider approving the following 
Consent Agenda items:

The following Consent Agenda items were read by the Village Clerk:

A. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-080 APPROVING AN AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND ROBINSON ENGINEERING LTD. FOR 
THE COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM (CRS) - 2020 CYCLE VERIFICATION.

B. CONSIDER PROCLAIMING SEPTEMBER 17TH THROUGH SEPTEMBER 23RD, 2020, AS 
"CONSTITUTION WEEK" IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK.

C. CONSIDER PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,394,333.93 AS 
LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS DATED AUGUST 7, AND 
AUGUST 14, 2020.

Page | 14AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 3

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the Board would like to remove or discuss any items from the 
Consent Agenda. No items were removed or discussed. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, Brennan, 
Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion 
carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adopt and place on file, 
RESOLUTION 2020-R-082 APPROVING AND AWARDING AN OAK PARK AVENUE FACADE 
GRANT TO ROBERT BARKER OF J.W. HOLLSTEIN'S LOCATED AT 17358 OAK PARK
AVENUE. Robert Barker (Applicant), proposes to remove and replace the existing fencing around the 
outdoor patio at J.W. Hollstein’s Saloon. The intent of the Façade Improvement Grant Program is to assist 
owners and tenants of existing buildings in upgrading their building facades by improving their overall
appearance. Under the Façade Grant, replacement of decorative elements including outdoor dining elements 
are eligible expenses. The applicant is requesting a $10,900 Facade Grant to replace the fence surrounding 
the outdoor patio with a new custom cedar wood treated fence.

The Economic and Commercial Commission reviewed the application at its August 10, 2020, meeting and 
voted 8-0 to recommend approval of the grant. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole 
meeting held prior to this meeting.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically 
or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, Brennan, 
Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion 
carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Galante, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to adopt and place on file 
ORDINANCE 2020-O-044 AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
159TH AND HARLEM TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AREA. There are several separate steps required by state statutes to formally create the proposed 
159th and Harlem TIF District. 

• On March 3, 2020, the Village of Tinley Park authorized moving forward with a feasibility study 
under the Tax Increment Finance (TIF) Act to determine if the area generally bounded by 159th 
Street, Oak Park Avenue, Olcott Avenue, and Siemsen Meadows (165th Street extended) can be 
designated as a Redevelopment Project Area.

• On June 3, 2020, the Village posted the Redevelopment Plan and Project for the proposed 252 acre 
159th and Harlem TIF District on the Village’s website (www.tinleypark.org) for public inspection.

• The availability of the Redevelopment Plan and Project for public inspection was also announced at 
the Village Board meeting held on June 9, 2020.

• On July 14, 2020, the 159th and Harlem TIF District Joint Review Board met and gave a favorable 
recommendation of the Redevelopment Plan and Project.

Page | 15AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 4

• On August 4, 2020, a public hearing for the 159th and Harlem TIF Redevelopment Plan and Project 
was held.

This item, and the ordinances under the following two agenda items, serve to, formally establish the 159th 
and Harlem TIF District. This first ordinance sets the boundaries and designates the Redevelopment Project 
Area for the 252-acre 159th and Harlem Tax Increment Financing District. 

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. 

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz posed questions and concerns received from a resident via social media.  The resident 
asked why the old K-Mart and Applebee’s buildings were included in the TIF as these buildings were 
purchased by Pete’s Fresh Market and Bandana’s BBQ prior to the consideration of this TIF.  It was noted 
that Pete’s Fresh Market received incentives from the Village. 

The resident also stated concerns that only three (3) of the nine (9) taxing districts from this TIF were present 
at the Joint Review Board meeting on July 14, 2020.  

Mr. Brown then addressed the Village Board. He thanked Trustee Galante for reading the list of 
accomplishments for getting this TIF to where it is today. He noted that the Village has reached its statutory 
requirements to put this TIF before the Village Board. 

Mr. Brown addressed the questions and declarations presented by President Pro Tem Glotz.  The first item 
addressed was why include Pete’s Market and Bandanas BBQ Restaurant.  Mr. Brown stated that the 
boundaries of the area designated for the proposed TIF district were set because this is the entryway from the 
northwest corridor to the Village.  The parcels are combined as a whole so the Village can have a cohesive 
plan for an area. The plan for this TIF is economic development and revitalization of the area. Part of that 
includes public infrastructure improvements. If the Village excluded parts of the area, it would create a plan 
that was not comprehensive. The Cook County 6B and 7B incentives awarded to Pete’s reduces its tax bill. 
The Village will now work with Pete’s to stay within the Village’s plan for the area. 

President Pro Tem Glotz asked if these funds could be used for walkways on the east and west side of 
Harlem Avenue to 167th Street.  Mr. Brown stated yes, and noted the infrastructure is not just limited to 
walkways. There are other infrastructure projects that could be done using TIF funds. 

Trustee Berg stated that she does not support another TIF district in the Village and will be voting no to the 
items for the proposed TIF. She feels the proposed TIF area supports as much retail as the Village will ever 
have, based on consumers use of online spending as has been reflected in the use tax received by the Village. 
She encouraged the Board to reconsider approval of this TIF according to the reports of the financials the 
Village is facing due to COVID-19. 

Trustee Galante pointed out that TIF funds can not be just handed out.  Businesses have to meet the 
requirements in order to receive TIF funding. Mr. Brown concurred, stating that only certain expenses 
qualify, and there is a process to be followed to receive the funds from the TIF. All plans and funds 
distributed will come before the Village Board, and they must comply with Village ordinances and zoning. 

Mr. Brown summarized the process in which a TIF works and how TIF funds can be put back into the TIF 
district.  He also noted that the taxing districts were made aware of the proposed TIF in January of this year.   

Page | 16AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 5

The appropriate notices were sent to the taxing districts regarding the JRB meeting on July 14th and Public 
Hearing on August 4th. 

Trustee Mueller stated that he is looking forward to the potential that this TIF district will bring to Tinley 
Park.  He noted that the boundaries of this TIF were scrutinized by staff, consultants and the Board. Both 
development and infrastructure opportunities were considered. He would like to see a creative mix of 
restaurants, retail, and experienced based locations that will make this entryway corridor viable to the Village 
long term.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either writing, telephonically or 
in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, 
Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: Berg.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Galante, seconded by Trustee Brennan, place on file, ORDINANCE 2020-O-
045 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 159TH AND HARLEM 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PROJECT. This is a companion ordinance to the previous agenda 
item. The current ordinance would approve the document outlining the possible redevelopment activities and 
improvements contemplated over the 23-year life of the 252 acre 159th and Harlem Tax Increment Financing 
District known as the Redevelopment Plan and Project.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either writing, telephonically or 
in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, 
Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: Berg.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Galante, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adopt and place on file, ORDINANCE 
2020-O-046 AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FOR THE VILLAGE 
OF TINLEY PARK 159TH AND HARLEM TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT. This is a 
companion ordinance to the previous two agenda items. This ordinance would approve Tax Increment 
Financing for the 159th and Harlem Tax Increment Financing District and is the last step in formally creating 
this TIF District. The Tax Increment Financing authorized by this ordinance would enable the TIF economic 
development tool, as provided under Illinois statutes, to assist the Village in encouraging redevelopment 
within the boundaries of the 159th and Harlem TIF District and potentially undertake
related public infrastructure improvements.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either writing telephonically or 
in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, 
Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: Berg.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Galante, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to adopt and place on file, 
RESOLUTION 2020-R-081 AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AND SUBRECIPIENT 
AGREEMENT FOR CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY 
PARK AND THE COUNTY OF COOK, ILLINOIS. The Village of Tinley Park was notified that Cook 
County has received about $429 million from the U.S. Treasury Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 

Page | 17AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 6

Security (CARES) Act funding and will designate $51 million to support municipalities under the 500,000-
population threshold. Cook County determined allocations to each municipality through an equitable lens, 
with factors that included, but not limited to; immediate needs of the municipality to respond to the 
pandemic, municipal population, municipal median income and municipal public health statistics. It is 
important to note that each municipality must apply for this funding allocation and such allocation will be 
contingent on eligible cost reimbursement.

Through the allocation process detailed above, the Village of Tinley Park has been awarded up to 
$383,275.56 for reimbursement of eligible COVID 19 costs. An Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is 
required by Cook County of all municipalities which intend to seek use of their allocation amount. The 
Village will also be required to submit a letter of intent and application to accompany the IGA.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either writing telephonically or 
in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Berg, Brady, Brennan, 
Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion 
carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to adopt and place on file, ORDINANCE 
2020-O-047 INCREASING THE NUMBER OF CLASS "E" LIQUOR LICENSES THAT CAN BE 
ISSUED IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK - FRY THE COOP, LOCATED AT 16703 
HARLEM AVENUE. The Petitioner, Joe Fontana (Founder and Owner of Fry the Coop) is seeking a Class 
E liquor license, which allows for the sale of beer and wine, for his restaurant that will be opening soon in 
Tinley Park. Fry the Coop features Nashville Hot Chicken, and has seen much success in its five (5) other 
locations which include Oak Lawn, Elmhurst, Prospect Heights, Chicago’s Loop, and Chicago’s West Town. 
The establishment has been featured on WGN’s Chicago Best, ABC’s Hungry Hound, WGN’s Lunch Break, 
ABC’s Windy City Live,
FOX’s Good Day Chicago, USA Today, Chicago Sun Times, and the Chicago Tribune. As a restaurant, Fry 
the Coop values its role in the community and works hard to build valuable relationships with people and 
other businesses.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically 
or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, 
Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Abstain: Berg. Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to place on first reading, ORDINANCE 
2020-O-048 DECREASING THE NUMBER OF CLASS “A” LIQUOR LICENSES THAT CAN BE 
ISSUED IN THE VILLAGE AND INCREASING THE NUMBER OF CLASS “AV” LIQUOR 
LICENSES THAT CAN BE ISSUED IN THE VILLAGE (BURRITO JALISCO #2 LOCATED AT 
7547 159TH STREET). The Petitioner, Burrito Jalisco, is seeking a Class AV Liquor License to add video 
gaming. The establishment current has a Class A Liquor License which allows for the sale of liquor. Burrito 
Jalisco has been in Tinley Park for over 18 years, but with the challenge’s restaurants have faced, would like 
to add video gaming as an additional revenue source. The Petitioner is proposing a seven (7) foot separation 
wall to align with requirements of the Board. The Petitioner has already sought approval from the Illinois 
Gaming Board and would only need local approval to move forward. 

Page | 18AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 7

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically 
or in-person.  Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, 
Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Abstain: Berg. Absent: Vandenberg. Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the 
motion carried.

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Staff. 

Village Manager Niemeyer thanked and congratulated John Urbanski on his promotion to Public Works 
Director. Mr. Niemeyer noted that Mr. Urbanski is a model public servant.

Public Works Director John Urbanski presented an update on the Oak Park Avenue Train Station warming 
shelter. After delays from Metra on the construction of this shelter construction will begin again soon. 

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. 

Trustee Galante thanked all involved with the Music in Plaza on August, 15th.  She received positive 
feedback from residents.  The event was put together in a safe and enjoyable environment. 

Mayor Pro Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically 
or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via 
telephone received for this item.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mueller, at 8:55 p.m. to adjourn to Executive Session 
to discuss the following: 

A. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON BEHALF OF THE 
PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN ACTION IS 
PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE 
RECORDED AND ENTERED INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING.

B. COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATING MATTERS BETWEEN THE PUBLIC BODY AND ITS EMPLOYEES 
OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES, OR DELIBERATIONS CONCERNING SALARY SCHEDULES 
FOR ONE OR MORE CLASSES OF EMPLOYEES.

C. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR 
DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE 
PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A COMPLAINT LODGED AGAINST AN 
EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY 
TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY.

D. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY, 
INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A 
PARTICULAR PARCEL SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.

E. THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE PUBLIC 
BODY.

Page | 19AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                                           August 18, 2020 8

Vote on roll call:  Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: Vandenberg. 
Mayor Pro Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adjourn the regular Board meeting.  Vote 
on roll call:  Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent: None.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Glotz declared the motion carried and adjourned the regular Board meeting at 9:53 p.m.

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects that no 
discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item.

APPROVED:

_____________________________________
                     Village President

ATTEST:

_____________________________________
                  Village Clerk

Page | 20AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



CONDUCT SWEARING IN 

CEREMONY FOR FIREFIGHTERS 

Firefighter Paul Cordero 

Firefighter Brian Wagner 

Trustee Brennan

Page | 21AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

CONSIDER THE APPOINTMENT 
OF  

JUSTIN BUTTALA 

TO THE POSITION OF  

MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN 

 

President Vandenberg 

Page | 22AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 23AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 24AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 25AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 26AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 27AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 28AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 29AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 30AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 31AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 32AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 33AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 34AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 35AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 36AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK RAFFLE LICENSE 

Pursuant to the provisions of §Section 132.30 through §Section 132.40 of the Village of Tinley Park Municipal Code, Peoples Animal Welfare 

Society (P.A.W.S.), is/are hereby authorized and licensed to conduct a single raffle with Vicki Dean to serve as the raffle operator. Chances for said 

raffle are permitted to be sold on/from Wednesday, September 2, 2020, in the following areas of the Village of Tinley Park: 8301 191st Street. The 

raffle shall be held at P.A.W.S. 8301 191st street on/from Sunday, November 15, 2020. The issuance of this license is subject to the requirement that 

in conducting the raffle, the provisions of §Section 132.30 through §Section 132.40 of the Village of Tinley Park Municipal Code shall be fully 

complied with by Vicki Dean of Peoples Animal Welfare Society.  

Dated this 2nd Day of September, 2020 

__________________________________________ 
Kristin A. Thirion 

Village Clerk 

Page | 37AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Village Clerk 
Kristin A. Thirion 

Village Trustees 
Cynthia A. Berg 

William P. Brady 
William A.  Brennan 

Diane M. Galante 
Michael W. Glotz 

Michael G. Mueller 

Village Hall 
16250 S. Oak Park Ave. 

Tinley Park, IL 60477 

Administration 
(708) 444-5000 

Fax: (708) 444-5099 

Community 
Development 
(708) 444-5100 

Fax: (708) 444-5199 

Public Works 
(708) 444-5500 

 
Police Department 

7850 W. 183rd St. 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

(708) 444-5300 
Non-Emergency 

Fax: (708) 444-5399 

John T. Dunn 
Public Safety Building 

17355 S. 68th Court 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 

Fire Department 
 (708) 444-5200 

Non-Emergency 

Fax: (708) 444-5299 

EMA 
(708) 444-5600 

Fax: (708) 444-5699 

Senior Community 
Center 

(708) 444-5150 

www.TinleyPark.org 

Village President 
Jacob C. Vandenberg September 1, 2020 

Ms. Vicki Dean 
Peoples Animal Welfare Society (P.A.W.S.) 
8301 191st Street 
Tinley Park, IL 60487 

Re:  Raffle License 

Dear Ms. Dean:       

Please be advised that the Village Board approved your request to 
conduct a raffle through Sunday, November 15, 2020, with the winner 
being drawn on Sunday, November 15, 2020 at P.A.W.S., 8301 191st St.  
This action was taken at their regularly scheduled Board meeting held 
on Tuesday, September 1, 2020.   It is important that you comply with 
the provisions of the Tinley Park, Illinois Code of Ordinances, Raffles 
Conducted by Nonprofit Organizations, which is enclosed. 

Your attention is called to Section 132.39 of Ordinance Number 2002-O-
014 which requires that certain records be kept and that at the 
conclusion of the raffle you report to the Village the raffle's gross 
receipts, expenses, net proceeds, and the distribution of net proceeds. 
In addition, all such records shall be preserved for three (3) years. 

Wishing you every success in this endeavor! 

Sincerely, 

Kristin A. Thirion 
Village Clerk 

KAT/dm 
Enclosure 

Page | 38AGENDA - 9/1/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

http://www.tinleypark.org/


08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ap_py

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

126267 8/21/2020 003127  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-NA-PPPR090120 IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PM
86-00-000-20430 964.50
IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PMBCBS-NA-PR090120
86-00-000-20430 1,930.00

Total : 2,894.50

126268 8/21/2020 019214  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-DA-PPPR090120 IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PM
86-00-000-20430 219.18
0000ILLB1212 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PMT/SEPTBCBS-DA-PR090120
86-00-000-20430 60.09

Total : 279.27

126269 8/21/2020 004640  HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION HCSVCS-PPPR090120 A/C#271855-HEALTH INS-AUG PMT/JULY COVER
86-00-000-20430 16,141.51
A/C#271855-HEALTH INS-AUG PMT/SEPT COVERHCSVCS-PR090120
86-00-000-20430 14,346.19

Total : 30,487.70

126270 8/21/2020 002613  UNITED HEALTHCARE AARP AARP -PPPR090120 AARP POLICE PENSION AUG PMT/SEPT COV
86-00-000-20430 3,415.43

Total : 3,415.43

Bank total : 37,076.904 Vouchers for bank code : ap_py

1Page:

Page | 39AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188588 8/21/2020 019543  ABEL, JULIE 081720 STICKER REIMBURSEMENT
06-00-000-79005 25.00

Total : 25.00

188589 8/21/2020 005548  ACTION TARGETS 0470038-IN FIAT SWAT-Q TARGETS
01-17-220-73760 244.33VTP-017948

Total : 244.33

188590 8/21/2020 014341  AFTERMATH, INC. JC2020-4958 BIOHAZARD CONTAINERS
01-17-205-72750 155.00

Total : 155.00

188591 8/21/2020 002424  AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOC 03630513 MEMBERSHIP CONNIE YOUPEL
60-00-000-72720 29.05
63-00-000-72720 29.05
64-00-000-72720 24.90

Total : 83.00

188592 8/21/2020 002470  AMPEST EXTERMINATION LLC 81297 TREAT AND REMOVE HORNETS NESTS 8843 172N
01-26-023-72790 175.00
TREAT AND REMOVE HORNETS NESTS - 16813 G81298
01-26-023-72790 175.00

Total : 350.00

188593 8/21/2020 014936  AQUAMIST PLUMBING & LAWN 101527 SPRINKLERS- HARLEM STREETSCAPE
01-26-023-72790 1,271.00VTP-017821
SPRINKLERS- 171ST MEDIANS101535
01-26-023-72790 318.00VTP-017821
SPRINKLERS101552
01-26-023-72790 518.80VTP-017821
START UP & BLOW OUT- VH101564
01-26-025-72790 794.00VTP-017868
START UP & BLOW OUT-OPA WEST101574
01-26-025-72790 793.21VTP-017868
START UP & BLOW OUT-OPA TRAIN EAST101580
01-26-025-72790 737.08VTP-017868
START UP & BLOW OUT - PD101587

2Page:

Page | 40AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188593 8/21/2020 (Continued)014936  AQUAMIST PLUMBING & LAWN
01-26-025-72790 683.70VTP-017868
START UP & BLOW OUT -FIRESTATION #4101594
01-26-025-72790 449.90VTP-017868
SPRINKLERS101600
01-26-023-72790 2,130.00VTP-017821

Total : 7,695.69

188594 8/21/2020 010953  BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P29905774 BATTERY- 12V24 MARINE DP 12
01-26-023-73870 80.95

Total : 80.95

188595 8/21/2020 003015  BEHRENS, JERRY AP090120 JERRY BEHRENS HEALTH INSURANCE -AUG WH/S
01-17-205-72435 157.50

Total : 157.50

188596 8/21/2020 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV200136 REMOVAL OF SPOILS FROM RECYCLING BINS
01-26-023-72890 225.00
60-00-000-73681 330.75
63-00-000-73681 36.75
64-00-000-73681 157.50
HAULING SWEEPINGS TO HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL A200137
01-26-023-72890 600.00
TRUCK TIME FOR LIMESTONE ETC DELIVERED T200138
01-26-023-73860 60.00
70-00-000-73860 20.00
60-00-000-73860 75.60
63-00-000-73860 8.40
64-00-000-73860 36.00

Total : 1,550.00

188597 8/21/2020 003127  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-NA-AP090120 IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PM
01-26-023-72435 156.00
01-33-300-72435 111.50
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85

3Page:

Page | 41AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188597 8/21/2020 (Continued)003127  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85
60-00-000-72435 65.56
63-00-000-72435 12.49
64-00-000-72435 33.45
01-12-000-72435 117.50
01-19-020-72435 248.00
01-26-023-72435 335.00
01-33-300-72435 87.50
60-00-000-72435 54.68
63-00-000-72435 10.42
64-00-000-72435 27.90
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85
IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PMBCBS-NA-PPAP090120
01-17-205-72435 964.50

Total : 2,622.50

188598 8/21/2020 019214  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-DA-AP090120 0000ILLB1212 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PMT/SEPT
01-33-300-72435 60.09
0000ILLB1212 HEALTH INS EXP-AUG PMT/SEPTBCBS-DA-PPAP090120
01-17-205-72435 219.16

Total : 279.25

188599 8/21/2020 018200  BRODERICK JR, DANIEL Ref001394995 UB Refund Cst #00495007
60-00-000-20599 128.45

Total : 128.45

188600 8/21/2020 019256  BURWOOD GROUP INC PS-06217-R1R7 <IT> - CITRIX UPGRADE TECHNICAL SUPPORT
01-16-000-72756 8,200.00VTP-017937

4Page:

Page | 42AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 8,200.00188600 8/21/2020 019256 019256  BURWOOD GROUP INC

188601 8/21/2020 017500  CALOMINO, JAMES 081320 REIMBURSE COSTS FOR PROP MAINT/HOUSING I
01-33-300-72140 231.00

Total : 231.00

188602 8/21/2020 003304  CARLIN-MORAN LANDSCAPE INC 3197 LAWN SERVICE - MULTIPLE LOCATIONS
01-33-300-72744 1,425.00

Total : 1,425.00

188603 8/21/2020 003396  CASE LOTS INC 7906 PROTECTIVE MASKS
01-26-025-73870 389.00

Total : 389.00

188604 8/21/2020 017224  CCS CHICAGO CONTRACTORS SUPPLY 212442 WATERSTOP AND EUCO SPEEDCRETE
01-26-023-73790 2,692.50

Total : 2,692.50

188605 8/21/2020 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC ZQB6823 <PD> - 4GB FLASH DRIVES FOR EVIDENCE REQ
01-17-205-73110 701.95VTP-017960
<PD> - 4GB FLASH DRIVES FOR EVIDENCE REQZQF3071
01-17-205-73110 660.25VTP-017960

Total : 1,362.20

188606 8/21/2020 003229  CED/EFENGEE 5025-533703 COND EMT, 2"
64-00-000-72520 29.49

Total : 29.49

188607 8/21/2020 019544  CHRISTIAN, FRED 081920 RETURNED STICKER#12972 NO LONGER NEEDED
06-00-000-79005 25.00

Total : 25.00

188608 8/21/2020 013820  CINTAS CORPORATION 5024015959 FIRST AID SUPPLIES/ VILLAGE HALL
01-26-025-73117 160.80
MEDICINE CABINET - FD#465025752816
01-19-000-73115 120.72
MEDICINE CABINET - FD#495025752823
01-19-000-73115 73.02

5Page:

Page | 43AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188608 8/21/2020 (Continued)013820  CINTAS CORPORATION
MEDICINE CABINET - FD TRAINING ROOM5025752846
01-19-000-73115 36.57
MEDICINE CABINET - FD#485025752848
01-19-000-73115 49.49
MEDICINE CABINET - FD#475025752885
01-19-000-73115 111.46
MEDICINE CABINET PW GARAGE9098718963
01-26-025-73117 162.43

Total : 714.49

188609 8/21/2020 013344  CITRIX SYSTEMS, INC 440000095451 <IT> - CITRIX SHAREFILE RENEWAL
01-16-000-72655 5,040.00VTP-017985

Total : 5,040.00

188610 8/21/2020 012917  COLLEGE OF DUPAGE 081320 BASIC TRUCK ENFORCEMENT
01-17-220-72140 295.00

Total : 295.00

188611 8/21/2020 017298  COMCAST BUSINESS 105704844 ACCT#93090410 08/01-08/31/20
01-14-000-72125 982.95

Total : 982.95

188612 8/21/2020 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810010702 ACCT#8771401810784702 08/16-09/15/20
01-35-000-72517 8.17
ACCT#8771401810028977 7980 183RD ST 8/168771401810028977
01-26-025-72517 47.87
ACCT#8771401810296319 8/8-9/7/208771401810296319
01-14-000-72125 233.35

Total : 289.39

188613 8/21/2020 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 0385181000 ACCT#0385181000 METRA STATION 18001 80TH
01-26-025-72510 2,612.05
ACCT#0385440022 BROOKSIDE GLN MEADOWTRAI0385440022
64-00-000-72510 294.16
ACCT#0471006425 LITE,CONTROLLER 19948 SI0471006425
01-26-024-72510 48.35

6Page:

Page | 44AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188613 8/21/2020 (Continued)013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON
ACCT#0637059039 7950 W TIMBER DR 7/10-8/0637059039
64-00-000-72510 119.75
ACCT#2922039023 ST LT CONTR 9342 PARKWOO2922039023
01-26-024-72510 12.92
ACCT#4943163008 7650 TIMBER DR 07/10-08/4943163008
70-00-000-72510 21.67

Total : 3,108.90

188614 8/21/2020 018311  CONNECTION 70225061 CABLE SINGLE-MODE 1M SC TO LC
01-16-000-72565 13.31
LIGHTNING USB CABLE70262408
01-16-000-72565 86.50

Total : 99.81

188615 8/21/2020 012410  CONSERV FS, INC. 105008439 GENERATOR FUEL DIESELEX GOLD ULTRA LS DY
60-00-000-73545 88.29
63-00-000-73545 88.28
DIESELEX GOLD ULTRA LS DYED GENERATOR FU105008440
60-00-000-73545 245.01
63-00-000-73545 245.00

Total : 666.58

188616 8/21/2020 012826  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC. 8368394 ACCT#8368394 UTIL #4384028017CUST#795603
01-26-024-72510 92.87

Total : 92.87

188617 8/21/2020 018234  CORE & MAIN LP M802584 BLK MI BUSH
60-00-000-73630 52.47
63-00-000-73630 5.83
64-00-000-73630 24.98
CAR CHARGERM831473
60-00-000-73410 95.76
63-00-000-73410 10.64
64-00-000-73410 45.60

Total : 235.28

7Page:

Page | 45AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188618 8/21/2020 003635  CROSSMARK PRINTING, INC 79750 TRESSPASS NOTICE 4 PART
01-17-205-72310 293.83

Total : 293.83

188619 8/21/2020 012198  CRYDER ENTERPRISES, INC. 2575 HYDRANT PAINTING PROJECT
60-00-000-72790 4,980.00VTP-017238

Total : 4,980.00

188620 8/21/2020 003782  D & B POWER ASSOCIATES INC. 031902 <IT> - MAINT RENEWAL - VH IN-ROW COOLING
01-16-000-72756 5,954.00VTP-017966

Total : 5,954.00

188621 8/21/2020 019552  DEIKE, MITCHELL Ref001394998 UB Refund Cst #00510528
60-00-000-20599 17.15

Total : 17.15

188622 8/21/2020 003770  DUSTCATCHERS INC 75136 MATS - VILLAGE HALL
01-26-025-72790 65.93
MATS - PW GARAGE75139
01-26-025-72790 99.08

Total : 165.01

188623 8/21/2020 004009  EAGLE UNIFORM CO INC 292312 BADGES FOR FF, CAPTAIN, LIEUTENANT, AND
01-19-000-73610 848.10VTP-017929
BADGES AND MALTESE CROSSES292392
01-19-000-73610 871.50VTP-017946

Total : 1,719.60

188624 8/21/2020 004094  EJ EQUIPMENT INC. P24497 ROTARY UNION
60-00-000-72530 141.58
63-00-000-72530 47.19
64-00-000-72530 80.90

Total : 269.67

188625 8/21/2020 011269  ELLIS, DON 133 SOUND AND LIGHTS FOR THE AUGUST 29
01-35-000-72923 800.00VTP-017958

Total : 800.00

8Page:

Page | 46AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188626 8/21/2020 012941  FMP 52-464290 BRAKE LINING KIT
01-26-023-72540 58.05
MOTOR AND FAN  - PD PARTS52-464333
01-17-205-72540 227.81

Total : 285.86

188627 8/21/2020 004185  FOREST LUMBER COMPANY 61338 LUMBER
01-26-023-73710 191.94

Total : 191.94

188628 8/21/2020 019545  FUS, EDMUND 081920 RETURNED STICKERS - DUPLICATE
06-00-000-79005 3.00

Total : 3.00

188629 8/21/2020 002877  G. W. BERKHEIMER CO.,  INC. 708451 1/4 IN FLAG DISCONN, STUD SPADE TERM
01-26-025-72530 4.92
BLOWER MOTOR708453
01-26-025-72530 354.10

Total : 359.02

188630 8/21/2020 017762  GOVQA INC. 1194-200901 FOIA SERVICES,REDACTION LICENSE,SOCIAL M
01-13-000-72655 9,569.00
01-17-205-72655 4,101.00
01-35-000-72655 4,410.00

Total : 18,080.00

188631 8/21/2020 004438  GRAINGER 9609029401 FOOD GRADE GREASE
60-00-000-73630 7.96
63-00-000-73630 0.89
64-00-000-73630 3.79
ALKALINE BATTERY9611299166
01-26-025-73870 35.52
EXTENTION CORD, BLEACH,LIQUID CLEANER9611573644
01-26-025-73580 110.47
SPRAY PAINT9611817702
01-26-025-73620 72.60
RUBBER STRIP9616729654

9Page:

Page | 47AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188631 8/21/2020 (Continued)004438  GRAINGER
60-00-000-73630 24.32
63-00-000-73630 2.70
64-00-000-73630 11.58
GLOVES AND SAFETY GLASSES9616812476
60-00-000-73845 75.09
63-00-000-73845 8.34
64-00-000-73845 35.76
01-26-023-73845 119.19
01-26-024-73845 59.60
EXTENTION CORD9618164397
01-26-025-73580 22.59
MARKING CHALK9618523535
01-35-000-72954 83.30
AEROSOL INSECT KILLER9619460794
01-26-025-73580 2.84

Total : 676.54

188632 8/21/2020 019423  GREATER ILLINOIS TITLE 5 11-320 THE BLVD AT CENTRAL STATION PAYOU
27-00-000-75300 64,864.02

Total : 64,864.02

188633 8/21/2020 004640  HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION HCSVCS-AP090120 A/C#271855-HEALTH INS EXPENSE-AUG WH/SEP
01-21-210-72435 295.25
01-26-025-72435 189.00
60-00-000-72435 111.14
63-00-000-72435 21.17
64-00-000-72435 56.69
01-26-025-72435 775.80
01-26-023-72435 2,808.46
01-26-024-72435 900.62
01-17-205-72430 0.32
A/C#271855-HEALTH INS EXP-AUG WH/SEPT COHCSVCS-PPAP090120
01-17-205-72435 21,230.98

Total : 26,389.43

188634 8/21/2020 012281  HINCKLEY SPRINGS 5977593080820 RENTAL WATER COOLER

10Page:

Page | 48AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188634 8/21/2020 (Continued)012281  HINCKLEY SPRINGS
01-21-210-73110 130.68

Total : 130.68

188635 8/21/2020 012328  HOMER INDUSTRIES S151315 DROP CHARGE - CHIPS
01-26-023-72890 100.00
DROP CHARGE - CHIPSS151364
01-26-023-72890 150.00

Total : 250.00

188636 8/21/2020 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 7094794 SWEEPINGS
01-26-023-72890 1,456.50

Total : 1,456.50

188637 8/21/2020 005127  INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE 289459 EMPLOYMENT LABS - P. SHEA JUNE 2020
01-41-040-72846 419.00

Total : 419.00

188638 8/21/2020 019549  JASENCAK, DOLORES Ref001394994 UB Refund Cst #00456362
60-00-000-20599 72.57

Total : 72.57

188639 8/21/2020 015288  KIESLER POLICE SUPPLY IN142176 AMMUNITION
01-17-220-73760 683.24VTP-017901

Total : 683.24

188640 8/21/2020 014402  LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MNGMNT 1038013-20200731 JULY'20 1038013 7/1/20-7/31/20
01-17-225-72852 150.00

Total : 150.00

188641 8/21/2020 012631  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY, LTD. 15030-91493 OIL FILTER
60-00-000-72540 6.15
63-00-000-72540 2.05
64-00-000-72540 3.51

Total : 11.71

188642 8/21/2020 019551  MCLAVEN, MARK & JULIE Ref001394997 UB Refund Cst #00509546
60-00-000-20599 34.90

11Page:

Page | 49AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 34.90188642 8/21/2020 019551 019551  MCLAVEN, MARK & JULIE

188643 8/21/2020 006074  MENARDS 90852 MR CLEAN ERASER AND LIGHTBULBS
01-26-025-73580 5.88
01-26-025-73570 17.91
E-STAR DEHUM FOR PUMP ROOM90853
64-00-000-72525 159.99
TAPE AND PICTURE HANGERS90927
01-26-025-73840 15.27
PAINT TRAY LINER AND PAINT KIT90933
01-26-025-73620 30.97
PICTURE HANGERS -RAZOR BLADE AND GORILLA91036
01-26-025-73840 11.98

Total : 242.00

188644 8/21/2020 005729  MR. RADIATOR & AIR COND SERV 043886 GAS TANK
01-17-205-72540 195.00

Total : 195.00

188645 8/21/2020 017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. 4034101001 HOSE,DRILL BIT,SEAL,DRILL
60-00-000-72540 58.97
63-00-000-72540 19.66
64-00-000-72540 33.70
01-26-023-72540 112.33
01-26-024-72540 56.16
01-17-205-72540 34.49

Total : 315.31

188646 8/21/2020 014443  MURPHY & MILLER, INC SVC00027377 SVC FOR 2 HEATER UNITS
60-00-000-72520 150.15
63-00-000-72520 150.15
64-00-000-72520 128.70
SERVICE ON THERMAL PUMP#1SVC00027378
01-26-025-72530 286.00

Total : 715.00

188647 8/21/2020 006226  NFPA 081420 CERTIFIED FIRE PROTECTION SPECIALIST REC

12Page:

Page | 50AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188647 8/21/2020 (Continued)006226  NFPA
01-19-020-72720 125.00

Total : 125.00

188648 8/21/2020 015723  NICOR 33079168366 ACCT#33-07-91-6836 6 9322 LAPORTE RD 7/1
64-00-000-72511 39.46
ACCT#49-92-47-1000 4 9191 W 175TH ST 7/149924710004
01-26-025-72511 133.10

Total : 172.56

188649 8/21/2020 013224  NORTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY 081720 RLB MEMORIAL COMMUNITY SERVICE SCHOLARSH
01-41-046-72920 1,000.00

Total : 1,000.00

188650 8/21/2020 010135  ONSITE COMMUNICATIONS USA, INC 50283 GLASS MOUNT ANTENNA
01-26-023-72540 72.00

Total : 72.00

188651 8/21/2020 019515  ORTIZ, ERIC 072020 FOR THE PERFORMANCE OF RENDITION AT THE
01-35-000-72923 800.00VTP-017990

Total : 800.00

188652 8/21/2020 019542  OSIKA, JOY & LOU 081720 STICKER REIMBURSEMENT
06-00-000-79005 120.00

Total : 120.00

188653 8/21/2020 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 064096/1 ACCT#891431 CORD REEL, SPLICER,ADAPTOR,T
64-00-000-73630 65.09
ACCT#891432 ULTIMATE SHOCK064109/1
01-26-023-73550 11.18
ACCT#891431 SPRAY ADHESIVE AND FASTERS064116/1
64-00-000-73840 14.99
ACCT#9404 CASCADE PODS,SOAP,PAPER TOWEL,64074/1
01-19-000-73580 467.37
ACCT#9404 BLEACH,COFFEE,CUPS,CLEANERS,TI64075/1
01-19-000-73580 548.05
01-19-000-72220 399.94

13Page:

Page | 51AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188653 8/21/2020 (Continued)006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE
01-19-000-73845 79.80
01-19-000-73410 53.97

Total : 1,640.39

188654 8/21/2020 019550  PHELAN, STEPHANIE Ref001394996 UB Refund Cst #00501489
60-00-000-20599 130.00

Total : 130.00

188655 8/21/2020 006735  PHOTOS BY RICK 5712 BENCH PHOTOS FOR BROCHURE
01-35-000-72923 343.00

Total : 343.00

188656 8/21/2020 006559  PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION, INC 98273117 ACETYLENE TANK
60-00-000-73730 15.56
63-00-000-73730 15.56
64-00-000-73730 13.34
01-26-023-73730 44.46
01-26-024-73730 44.46
01-17-205-72540 66.69
01-33-300-73870 22.22

Total : 222.29

188657 8/21/2020 006850  QUILL CORPORATION 9454348 ENVELOPES
01-33-300-73110 203.97

Total : 203.97

188658 8/21/2020 015230  RIDGE LANDSCAPE SERVICES LLC 7295 MOWING - MULTIPLE LOCATIONS JULY
01-26-023-72881 40,018.90VTP-017836
MOWING - MULTIPLE LOCATIONS JUNE7301
01-26-023-72881 32,015.12VTP-017836

Total : 72,034.02

188659 8/21/2020 019473  RIEL, JOHN 081720 COST SHARE REIMBURSEMENT -17542 REDWOOD
01-26-023-75200 852.60

Total : 852.60

188660 8/21/2020 007629  SAM'S CLUB DIRECT 061620 PWG VENDING,PAPER PLATES,CUTLERY

14Page:

Page | 52AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188660 8/21/2020 (Continued)007629  SAM'S CLUB DIRECT
60-00-000-73115 32.93
64-00-000-73115 14.11
01-26-023-73115 47.04
01-26-024-73115 23.52
01-14-000-73115 51.16
PWG - VENDING, TOOL CRIB STOCK061820
01-14-000-73115 33.48
01-26-025-73115 16.98
PWG-WATER AND COFFEE070920
60-00-000-73115 35.52
64-00-000-73115 15.22
01-26-023-73115 50.74
01-26-024-73115 25.38
FD VENDING073020
01-14-000-73115 11.98
01-19-000-73110 21.26
PWG VENDING,PLATES, CUPS080520
60-00-000-73115 7.26
64-00-000-73115 3.11
01-26-023-73115 10.37
01-26-024-73115 5.18
01-14-000-73115 20.56
COFFEE FILTERS, VH VENDING080720
60-00-000-73115 3.85
64-00-000-73115 1.65
01-26-023-73115 5.50
01-26-024-73115 2.76
01-26-025-73115 23.44
PWG-COFFEE AND PAPER TOWELS081220
60-00-000-73115 19.84
64-00-000-73115 8.50
01-26-023-73115 28.34
01-26-024-73115 14.18

Total : 533.86

188661 8/21/2020 007453  SERVICE SANITATION, INC. 7919759 MUSIC IN THE PARK  -PORT A POTTY

15Page:

Page | 53AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188661 8/21/2020 (Continued)007453  SERVICE SANITATION, INC.
01-35-000-72923 605.00

Total : 605.00

188662 8/21/2020 007577  SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 2498-5 PAINT
01-26-025-73620 155.90

Total : 155.90

188663 8/21/2020 013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. 7482PH2-36 LANDSCAPE PLANNING 6/28-7/25/20
01-26-023-72847 821.25VTP-017897
NATURALIZED STORMWATER MAINTENANCE7698-57
01-26-023-72847 2,120.00VTP-017852
FAIRFIELD GLEN POND RESTORATION8322-23
30-00-000-73681 722.50VTP-017820
APPLE LANE POND RESTORATION8323-24
30-00-000-73681 827.50VTP-017819
URBN FORESTRY PROGRAM8498-19
01-26-023-72847 2,953.75VTP-017837
MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE BEDS8803-05
01-26-023-72847 1,372.50VTP-017847

Total : 8,817.50

188664 8/21/2020 013190  SOLARWINDS IN491247 <IT> - SOLARWINDS ARM MAINT RENEWAL
01-16-000-72655 2,116.00VTP-017986
<IT> - SOLARWINDS SERVER & APP MONITOR RIN491250
01-16-000-72655 705.00VTP-017987

Total : 2,821.00

188665 8/21/2020 007503  STAT TOWING 000011381 TOWING
01-17-220-72753 50.00

Total : 50.00

188666 8/21/2020 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S006671601.001 CRIMP TOOL
01-26-025-73410 27.65
VOLT ELECTRICAL TESTER,PLIERS,CANVAS ZIPS006671609.001
01-26-025-73410 498.88
FIRE STATION 47 EXTRACTOR BREAKERS006673904.001

16Page:

Page | 54AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188666 8/21/2020 (Continued)015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY
01-26-025-72530 1,073.67VTP-017930

Total : 1,600.20

188667 8/21/2020 019553  STORM SERVICES LLC Ref001394999 UB Refund Cst #00511967
60-00-000-20599 384.49

Total : 384.49

188668 8/21/2020 018871  SULLA PHOTO LTD 3501 M84 PLACEMENT VIDEO VETERANS -AERIAL VID
01-41-050-72928 250.00

Total : 250.00

188669 8/21/2020 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 509490 REGULATOR FOR WINDOW
01-17-205-72540 91.65

Total : 91.65

188670 8/21/2020 000645  TED'S GREENHOUSE INC 519328 BENCHES ON THE AVENUE FLOWERS AND SOIL F
01-35-000-72954 109.90VTP-017864
BENCHES ON THE AVENUE FLOWERS AND SOIL F519385
01-35-000-72954 1,122.38VTP-017864
01-35-000-72954 27.70
SUMMER PLANTS-WRAP AROUND BASKETS520183
01-26-023-72881 12,160.00VTP-017854
SUMMER PLANTERS520183.
01-26-023-72881 9,180.80VTP-017853
ANNUALS & WATERING PLANTERS JUNE'20520184
01-26-023-72790 6,654.00VTP-017974
ANNUALS & WATERING PLANTERS- JULY '20520325
01-26-023-72790 2,610.00VTP-017974

Total : 31,864.78

188671 8/21/2020 002122  TERRY'S RV CENTER 8328 FILTER,AIR CLEANER,FILTER FUEL, SPARK PL
60-00-000-72540 30.90
63-00-000-72540 10.30
64-00-000-72540 17.66

Total : 58.86

17Page:

Page | 55AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188672 8/21/2020 007886  THEODORE POLYGRAPH SERVICE 7026 POLYGRAPH EXAM C. MARCIANO
01-41-040-72846 200.00

Total : 200.00

188673 8/21/2020 014854  THOMSON REUTERS-WEST PYMNT CTR842769444 REFERENCE STANDING ORDER 7/1-7/31/20
01-17-225-72852 199.94

Total : 199.94

188674 8/21/2020 007786  TOUCH OF GREEN INC,A 081720 DOUBLE PAYMENT OF LANDSCAPING LICENSE
01-14-000-79010 50.00

Total : 50.00

188675 8/21/2020 008040  UNDERGROUND PIPE & VALVE CO 044229 VARIOUS UNDERGROUND PLUMBING SUPPLIES
60-00-000-73630 1,229.13VTP-017982
63-00-000-73630 136.57VTP-017982
64-00-000-73630 585.30VTP-017982

Total : 1,951.00

188676 8/21/2020 002613  UNITED HEALTHCARE AARP AARP-AP090120 AUG 20 PYMT FOR SEPT 20 COVERAGE
01-33-300-72435 135.85
01-13-000-72435 222.89
60-00-000-72435 433.08
01-26-024-72435 215.03
01-26-023-72435 110.18
60-00-000-72435 204.58
01-17-205-72435 82.30
60-00-000-72435 41.16
01-26-025-72435 41.14
01-17-205-72435 293.55
AARP POLICE PENSION AUG PMT/SEPT COVAARP-PPAP090120
01-17-205-72435 2,716.66

Total : 4,496.42

188677 8/21/2020 018250  VERIZON CONNECT NWF INC OSV000002182109 CUST ID TINL001 7/1/20-7/31/20
01-26-023-72790 275.23

Total : 275.23

18Page:

Page | 56AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188678 8/21/2020 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS 9860706407 TELLULAR 1, 2, 3, 4
01-17-205-72127 8.85

Total : 8.85

188679 8/21/2020 008085  VERMEER MIDWEST/VERMEER IL PF2812 STREET BOLT,NUT,FEEDROLLWER WEAR PAD
01-26-023-72530 229.34

Total : 229.34

188680 8/21/2020 012368  VISION INTEGRATED GRAPHICS,LLC 538965 UNPAID BALANCE LETTER
60-00-000-72310 774.90
64-00-000-72310 332.10

Total : 1,107.00

188681 8/21/2020 008095  VISSERS COLLISION CENTER 165876 BODYWORK ON UNIT 2B (EGA33409)
01-17-205-72540 1,285.86VTP-017967

Total : 1,285.86

188682 8/21/2020 010165  WAREHOUSE DIRECT WORKPL SOLTNS4732110-0 PAPER
01-17-205-73110 428.40
PAPER4732113-0
01-26-025-73110 214.20
LABELS, TRIMMER,POUCH4737162-0
01-21-210-73110 40.17

Total : 682.77

188683 8/21/2020 011055  WARREN OIL CO. W1327392 N.L. GAS USED 7/16-7/30/20
01-17-205-73530 5,539.47
01-19-000-73530 273.08
01-19-020-73530 65.25
01-21-000-73530 151.58
60-00-000-73530 549.47
63-00-000-73530 137.37
64-00-000-73530 294.36
01-26-023-73530 845.08
01-26-024-73530 328.65
01-33-300-73530 139.34
01-12-000-73530 88.87

19Page:

Page | 57AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188683 8/21/2020 (Continued)011055  WARREN OIL CO.
01-14-000-73531 656.28
14-00-000-73530 32.46
01-42-000-73530 211.74
DIESEL USED 07/16/20 TO 7/30/20W1327393
01-19-000-73545 1,570.42
60-00-000-73545 140.55
63-00-000-73545 35.14
64-00-000-73545 75.30
01-26-023-73545 1,209.18
01-26-024-73545 162.66
01-14-000-73531 178.87

Total : 12,685.12

188684 8/21/2020 018482  WATTS, JERRY 081220 3 EMA MEMBERS FOOD FOR 8/10 WEATHER AND
01-21-000-72220 40.25

Total : 40.25

Bank total : 317,136.9697 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

20Page:

Page | 58AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2738 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 203.02

Total : 203.02

2739 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-2 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 195.39

Total : 195.39

2740 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-3 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 204.40

Total : 204.40

2741 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-4 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 162.36

Total : 162.36

2742 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-5 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 162.36

Total : 162.36

2743 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-6 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 204.40

Total : 204.40

2744 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-8 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 196.76

Total : 196.76

2745 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200318W009-7 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 169.98

Total : 169.98

2746 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200803W006 PAYEE-PAMELA YOUNKER
01-14-000-72542 1,113.02

Total : 1,113.02

2747 8/18/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP200605W013 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72542 5,455.50

21Page:

Page | 59AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/21/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
22

 6:14:38AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 5,455.502747 8/18/2020 018837 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GRP

Bank total : 8,067.1910 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

362,281.05Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report111

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

22Page:

Page | 60AGENDA - 9/1/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
1

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188685 8/25/2020 005790  METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION 082020 2ND INSTALLMENT 2020 SERVICE F
64-00-000-73226 395,866.34

Total : 395,866.34

188686 8/28/2020 002628  AMERICAN WATER 4000197689 FLAT  MONTHLY FEE AUG'20
64-00-000-73225 455.67

Total : 455.67

188687 8/28/2020 002470  AMPEST EXTERMINATION LLC 81387 TREAT AND REMOVE HORNETS NE
01-26-023-72790 175.00

Total : 175.00

188688 8/28/2020 014936  AQUAMIST PLUMBING & LAWN 105947 SPRINKLERS LAGRANGE RD MEDI
01-26-023-72790 1,736.03VTP-017821

Total : 1,736.03

188689 8/28/2020 010953  BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P30380713 SLA12-8F LEAD BATTERY
14-00-000-74150 140.00

Total : 140.00

188690 8/28/2020 018807  BAXTER & WOODMAN INC 0215141 190816.40 LAGRANGE RD UTILITY I
62-00-000-72840 36,730.00
180829.20 PHASE1-GIS UPDATE0215755
60-00-000-75813 4,389.88
63-00-000-75813 4,389.88
64-00-000-75813 3,762.74
190816.40 LAGRANGE RD UTILITY I0215756
62-00-000-72840 10,026.80

Total : 59,299.30

188691 8/28/2020 002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV200139 HALING WOODCHIPS TO HOMER IN
01-26-023-72890 550.00
HAULING BROKEN ASPHALT TO CH200140
01-26-023-72890 225.00
60-00-000-73681 330.75
63-00-000-73681 36.75

1Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
2

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188691 8/28/2020 (Continued)002974  BETTENHAUSEN CONSTRUCTION SERV
64-00-000-73681 157.50
HAULING WOODCHIPS TO HOMER 200141
01-26-023-72890 700.00

Total : 2,000.00

188692 8/28/2020 019564  BIG CONCRETE AND EXCAVATING 082620 CORRECT FEE AMOUNT AS SUBCO
01-14-000-79010 50.00

Total : 50.00

188693 8/28/2020 002923  BLACK DIRT INC. 062020-185 4 WHEELER DIRT
01-26-023-73680 900.00

Total : 900.00

188694 8/28/2020 011929  CAPITAL ONE BANK (USA), N.A. 071720 ****6452 WATER EQUIPMENT
60-00-000-72528 59.35
63-00-000-72528 59.34
****6452 LOGMEIN GOTO MEETING072120
01-14-000-72720 25.16
****6452 PROPOSED TIF MAILINGS072120
01-14-000-72110 345.70
****6452 KEN-TOOL DUAL WHEEL S072320
60-00-000-72540 52.42
01-26-023-72540 52.42
01-26-024-72540 26.20
****6452 TV WALL MOUNT072720
01-26-025-72520 1,066.92
****6452 CARWASH COUPONS072720
01-17-205-72540 900.00
****6452 DUNKIN DONUTS RIBBON 072920
01-35-000-73870 75.96
****6452 CHICAGO TRIBUNE MONT080520
01-35-000-72720 27.72
****6452 WORKING LUNCH080620
01-12-000-72220 52.23
****6452 XLR CABLE112-0115458-2635447
01-35-000-72982 24.98

2Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
3

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188694 8/28/2020 (Continued)011929  CAPITAL ONE BANK (USA), N.A.
****6452 HEADPHONE SPLITTER112-8092801-4873050
01-35-000-72982 19.97
****6452 IPAD MOUNT,SD SCAN DIS113-0287012-9851465
01-35-000-72982 20.96
****6452 SOCIAL DISTANCING DECA113-2501347-7655440
01-35-000-72923 95.92
****6452 ADOBE STOCK1213094624
01-35-000-72985 29.99
****6452 TOILET PAPER PARTITION229281
01-26-025-73580 55.68
****6452 AEROSOL STRIPING CHAL8932
01-35-000-72954 72.85
****6452 ZOOM -MONTHLY SUBSCRINV35523473
01-33-320-72720 14.99
****6452 MAGAZINE HOLDER WITH WEB102620811
01-35-000-72923 51.47

Total : 3,130.23

188695 8/28/2020 003396  CASE LOTS INC 8056 WHITE TOWELS
01-26-025-73580 350.80

Total : 350.80

188696 8/28/2020 003334  CCP INDUSTRIES, INC IN02534169 WIPES
01-26-025-73580 444.21

Total : 444.21

188697 8/28/2020 003243  CDW GOVERNMENT INC ZTJ9810 <FD> - SQL LICENSE FIREHOUSE T
01-19-000-72655 617.30VTP-017984
<VAR> - ADOBE CREATIVE CLOUD ZTK1359
01-17-205-72655 948.02VTP-017983
01-19-020-72655 948.02VTP-017983
01-33-310-72655 2,844.06VTP-017983
01-35-000-72655 2,844.06VTP-017983

Total : 8,201.46

188698 8/28/2020 015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUNDS LLC 1-0157983 ROTOR/BRAKES

3Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
4

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188698 8/28/2020 (Continued)015199  CHICAGO PARTS & SOUNDS LLC
01-17-205-72540 417.09
ROTOR BRAKES1-0157988
01-17-205-72540 196.74
3/4 BRASS COAX AND LABOR2J0002419
01-17-205-72540 164.50

Total : 778.33

188699 8/28/2020 017349  CHICAGO STREET CCDD, LLC 19468 DUMP FEE 8/10/20
01-26-023-72890 280.00

Total : 280.00

188700 8/28/2020 012057  COMCAST CABLE 8771401810316240 ACCT#8771401810316240 7850 183R
01-17-205-72517 54.25

Total : 54.25

188701 8/28/2020 014579  COMCAST CABLE COMM, INC. 20093 RELOCATION OF FIBER OPTIC CAB
27-00-000-75300 22,842.20VTP-018016

Total : 22,842.20

188702 8/28/2020 013892  COMED 6771163052 ACCT#6771163052 LITE RT25 TRAF
01-26-024-72510 2,112.16

Total : 2,112.16

188703 8/28/2020 013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON 0021100130 ACCT#0021100130 RT/23 METERED
01-26-025-72510 38.56
ACCT#0052035006 6720 SOUTH ST 0052035006
01-26-025-72510 1,223.74
ACCT#0363058226 9340 W 179TH 7/0363058226
01-26-024-72510 59.09
ACCT#0369095018 6761 NORTH ST0369095018
01-26-024-72510 26.23
ACCT#0421064066 LAPORTE RD/W0421064066
64-00-000-72510 59.55
ACCT#0519019106 6750 STOUTH S0519019106
12-00-000-72510 6.23
ACCT#0522112018 17048 OPA LOT 70522112018

4Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
5

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188703 8/28/2020 (Continued)013878  COMED - COMMONWEALTH EDISON
01-26-024-72510 33.07
ACCT#1222218001 1 E OPA NORTH1222218001
70-00-000-72510 202.73
ACCT#1224165129 7053 W 183RD S1224165129
01-26-024-72510 111.93
ACCT#2587063010 17311 OPA 7/21-2587063010
12-00-000-72510 19.37
ACCT#3784064010 16301 CENTRAL3784064010
60-00-000-72510 26.54
63-00-000-72510 26.53
ACCT#4329016037 17238 OPA 7/21-4329016037
12-00-000-72510 25.18
ACCT#4803158058 RIDGELAND LIF4803158058
64-00-000-72510 133.21
ACCT#5437131000 7980 W 183RD S5437131000
01-26-025-72510 218.28
ACCT#5983017013 19112 S 80TH AV5983017013
63-00-000-72510 55.93
ACCT#7090006006 17231 OPA REAR7090006006
12-00-000-72510 19.37
ACCT#7398024011 7000 W 183RD S7398024011
01-26-024-72510 48.59

Total : 2,334.13

188704 8/28/2020 012522  CONNEY SAFETY PRODUCTS, LLC 05879054 SAFETY VESTS
60-00-000-73845 75.30
63-00-000-73845 8.36
64-00-000-73845 35.87
01-26-023-73845 119.53
01-26-024-73845 59.77

Total : 298.83

188705 8/28/2020 012410  CONSERV FS, INC. 66038522 CONSERV FS SUNNY
60-00-000-73680 56.84
63-00-000-73680 6.31
64-00-000-73680 27.06

5Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
6

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 90.21188705 8/28/2020 012410 012410  CONSERV FS, INC.

188706 8/28/2020 018234  CORE & MAIN LP M840783 VALVE BOX
60-00-000-73630 233.10
63-00-000-73630 25.90
64-00-000-73630 111.00

Total : 370.00

188707 8/28/2020 012198  CRYDER ENTERPRISES, INC. 2578 HYDRANT PAINTING PROJECT
60-00-000-72790 4,980.00VTP-017238

Total : 4,980.00

188708 8/28/2020 019557  CULLINAN, MAUREEN 081920 STICKER NO LONGER NEEDED
06-00-000-79005 25.00

Total : 25.00

188709 8/28/2020 019556  DANGOY, RENATO 082120 DUPLICATE STICKERS
06-00-000-79005 50.00

Total : 50.00

188710 8/28/2020 019276  DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP INC 100347 APPLE LANE POND RESTORATION
30-00-000-73681 25,727.76VTP-017817
APPLE LANE POND RESTORATION101851
30-00-000-73681 1,240.00VTP-017817

Total : 26,967.76

188711 8/28/2020 019566  DUNN, KENNETH Ref001395225 OVERPMT INVOICE VH-07140 (HEA
01-00-000-20100 15.00

Total : 15.00

188712 8/28/2020 004119  ETP LABS INC. 20-134700 COLIFORM SAMPLES
60-00-000-72865 286.00
63-00-000-72865 286.00

Total : 572.00

188713 8/28/2020 004019  EVON'S TROPHIES & AWARDS 081220 BENCHES ON THE AVE AWARD TRO
01-35-000-72923 420.00

6Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
7

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 420.00188713 8/28/2020 004019 004019  EVON'S TROPHIES & AWARDS

188714 8/28/2020 016212  F H PASCHEN, S N NIELSEN & 1550-370-1 1550-370-1 JUL'20 WORK FOR 80TH
33-00-000-75126 207,684.21

Total : 207,684.21

188715 8/28/2020 004756  FIRST MIDWEST BANK 312 312-1106 SAFETY DEPOSIT BOX 312-1106
01-13-000-72720 74.00

Total : 74.00

188716 8/28/2020 015058  FLEETPRIDE 58016738 HINGE MNT ALTERNATOR
60-00-000-72540 130.40
63-00-000-72540 43.47
64-00-000-72540 74.52

Total : 248.39

188717 8/28/2020 012941  FMP 52-464995 FUEL CAP
01-26-024-72540 10.62
RADIATOR FAN52-465079
01-17-205-72540 218.46
ELECTRICAL FOR IMPALA52-465236
01-26-024-72540 130.49

Total : 359.57

188718 8/28/2020 002877  G. W. BERKHEIMER CO.,  INC. 715675 48335 -KEYS
01-26-025-72520 55.32

Total : 55.32

188719 8/28/2020 004500  GASVODA & ASSOCIATES, INC INV2001702 SVC CALL FOR CIT GAS EQUIPMEN
60-00-000-72528 162.50
63-00-000-72528 162.50
60-00-000-72528 730.32
63-00-000-72528 730.31

Total : 1,785.63

188720 8/28/2020 004538  GOLDY LOCKS INC 685591 DUPLICATE KEYS
01-26-025-73840 22.95

7Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
8

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 22.95188720 8/28/2020 004538 004538  GOLDY LOCKS INC

188721 8/28/2020 019571  GONZALEZ, RICARDO Ref001395244 UB Refund Cst #00511147
60-00-000-20599 27.61

Total : 27.61

188722 8/28/2020 004438  GRAINGER 9261829960 DRAIN PLUG ASSEMBLY
01-19-000-73870 5.56
TOILET WAND DISPOSABLE REFILL9617583324
01-26-025-73580 669.00
COATED GLOVES AND AEROSOL L9623489268
01-26-025-73870 166.08

Total : 840.64

188723 8/28/2020 012328  HOMER INDUSTRIES S151564 DROP CHARGE- BRUSH,CHIPS
01-26-023-72890 150.00
DROP CHARGE - CHIPSS151614
01-26-023-72890 200.00
DROP CHARGE - CHIPSS151673
01-26-023-72890 100.00

Total : 450.00

188724 8/28/2020 001487  HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 7093801 30YD EXCHANGE HAUL AND DUMP
01-26-023-72890 398.20

Total : 398.20

188725 8/28/2020 005251  J AND R SALES AND SERVICE INC. 0335642 2 EXTENDING POLE SAWS
01-26-023-73410 535.96VTP-017981

Total : 535.96

188726 8/28/2020 007233  JOLIET SUSPENSION, INC. 124642 REPLACE BOTH REAR SPRINGS O
60-00-000-72540 827.96VTP-017998
63-00-000-72540 275.99VTP-017998
64-00-000-72540 473.12VTP-017998

Total : 1,577.07

188727 8/28/2020 019570  KEEDY, JUSTIN Ref001395243 UB Refund Cst #00499431
60-00-000-20599 22.78

8Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
9

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 22.78188727 8/28/2020 019570 019570  KEEDY, JUSTIN

188728 8/28/2020 005379  KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD 211977 MATTER ID 0114-001 SERVICES TH
01-14-000-72850 55.00

Total : 55.00

188729 8/28/2020 019568  KOZAK, NOREEN Ref001395241 UB Rfnd Cst #00467976 overpmt
60-00-000-20599 170.84

Total : 170.84

188730 8/28/2020 014190  LEHIGH HANSON 5836950 BED/BACKFILL
60-00-000-73860 200.88
63-00-000-73860 22.32
64-00-000-73860 95.65
01-26-023-73860 159.43
70-00-000-73860 53.14

Total : 531.42

188731 8/28/2020 013499  LION GROUP, INC. 20-5011323 BUNKER GEAR CLEANING
01-19-000-74619 7,168.40

Total : 7,168.40

188732 8/28/2020 019567  LORDEN, SHEILA & MICHAEL Ref001395240 UB Rfnd Cst #00489536 overpmt
60-00-000-20599 331.46

Total : 331.46

188733 8/28/2020 014846  LORENCE, BRUCE 090120 SEPT'20 OPA ST TRAIN MAINT
01-26-025-72530 30.00

Total : 30.00

188734 8/28/2020 012631  MASTER AUTO SUPPLY, LTD. 15030-91698 OIL PRESSURE SWITCH
01-17-205-72540 20.08

Total : 20.08

188735 8/28/2020 006074  MENARDS 90706 PAINT SPRAY,BRUSH,TOOL (173RD
01-26-024-72775 23.36
IPAD CHARGER90722
60-00-000-73870 6.29

9Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
10

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188735 8/28/2020 (Continued)006074  MENARDS
63-00-000-73870 6.29
64-00-000-73870 5.40
WATER,CAN OPENER,GLASSES91026
01-19-000-73845 15.36
01-19-000-72524 11.98
PICTURE HANGERS91049
01-26-025-73840 9.98
DROP CLOTH AND PMGREEN91090
01-26-025-73620 16.94
SELFLOCK TAPE91091
01-35-000-73870 27.92
ANGLE GRINDER91127
60-00-000-73410 16.13
63-00-000-73410 1.79
64-00-000-73410 7.68
01-26-023-73410 25.60
01-26-024-73410 12.80
FLEET CHARGE 50/50 AF91222
01-19-000-72540 29.97
CVR 3PK FAB PLYSTER91331
01-26-025-72520 3.69
DEHUMIDIFIER ,EXT CORD,FAUCET91352
01-26-025-73870 347.97
LIGHTBULBS FOR 80TH AVE91387
01-26-025-73570 10.98

Total : 580.13

188736 8/28/2020 005729  MR. RADIATOR & AIR COND SERV 043919 COMPRESSOR
01-26-023-72540 265.00

Total : 265.00

188737 8/28/2020 017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. 3915711001 DISC,BRUSH,LOCK NUT,TUBING,W
60-00-000-72540 67.35
63-00-000-72540 22.45
64-00-000-72540 38.49
01-26-023-72540 128.29

10Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
11

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188737 8/28/2020 (Continued)017651  MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO.
01-26-024-72540 109.96
STREET TRAILER HARDWARE - SC4045098001
01-26-023-73840 117.31

Total : 483.85

188738 8/28/2020 014443  MURPHY & MILLER, INC MC00008555 ANNUAL HVAC MAINTENANCE & IN
01-26-025-72790 592.83VTP-017907
REPLACED TEMP PRESSURE GAUSVC00027949
01-26-025-72530 441.11

Total : 1,033.94

188739 8/28/2020 006139  NAT'L FIRE SPRINKLER ASSOC. INV-02429-G3Q1J5 GOVT MEMBERSHIP R. RIORDAN
01-19-020-72720 50.00

Total : 50.00

188740 8/28/2020 015723  NICOR 64423710009 ACCT#64423710009 3358398 6825 1
01-26-025-72511 144.72
ACCT#81423710003 2831616 17375 81423710003
01-26-025-72511 39.00
ACCT#90223493009 5080735 6700 S90223493009
01-26-025-72511 39.00

Total : 222.72

188741 8/28/2020 016641  NIEMEYER, DAVID 082420 LUNCH FOR HR DIRECTOR
01-12-000-72220 90.18

Total : 90.18

188742 8/28/2020 010135  ONSITE COMMUNICATIONS USA, INC 50466 CELLULAR ENHANCEMENT FOR BA
30-00-000-75812 5,129.00VTP-017975

Total : 5,129.00

188743 8/28/2020 015699  ONSOLVE LLC INV54661823362 <VAR> - CODERED LICENSING & S
01-17-205-72655 3,465.00VTP-018002
01-17-220-72655 2,598.75VTP-018002
01-19-000-72655 2,598.75VTP-018002
01-21-000-72655 4,331.25VTP-018002

11Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
12

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188743 8/28/2020 (Continued)015699  ONSOLVE LLC
01-26-023-72655 1,732.50VTP-018002
01-35-000-72655 866.25VTP-018002
60-00-000-72655 1,091.48VTP-018002
63-00-000-72655 121.28VTP-018002
64-00-000-72655 519.74VTP-018002

Total : 17,325.00

188744 8/28/2020 006475  PARK ACE HARDWARE 036617/2 ACCT#9404 FASTENERS
01-19-000-72520 4.76
ACCT#9404 SURGE PROTECTOR,F064146/1
01-19-000-72540 15.98
01-19-000-73410 22.98
01-19-000-72520 0.24
ACCT#891432 HEX KEY SET64132/1
60-00-000-73410 10.07
63-00-000-73410 1.12
64-00-000-73410 4.80

Total : 59.95

188745 8/28/2020 017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY 132036 4118.001 JABER OF BEHALF OF HIM
60-00-000-72850 39.00
4130.0001 VILL OF TP - GENERAL M132048
01-14-000-72850 32,909.00
4130.0003 FOIA SERVICES THRU 7/132049
01-14-000-72850 7,059.00
4130.0023 RUDSINKSI VS TP, SERV132050
60-00-000-72850 429.00
4130.0025 TP 2019 NO CASH BID SV132051
01-14-000-72850 9,985.65
4130.0032 TP VS. GARY GROWN DE132052
01-14-000-72850 370.50
4130.0035 PETE'S FRESH MARKET 132053
01-14-000-72850 195.00
4131.0001 VILLAGE MATTERS THRU132054
01-14-000-72855 6,181.50
4160.0001 VILLAGE PROSECUTION132058

12Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
13

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188745 8/28/2020 (Continued)017268  PETERSON JOHNSON & MURRAY
01-14-000-72850 8,280.00

Total : 65,448.65

188746 8/28/2020 015491  PIZZO & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 23593 FAIRFILED GLEN POND RESTORAT
30-00-000-73681 1,586.75VTP-017818

Total : 1,586.75

188747 8/28/2020 006361  RAY O' HERRON CO INC 2045843-IN MACE,EARMUFFS,HANDCUFFS,LO
01-17-220-73610 257.35
AMMUNITION2046704-IN
01-17-220-73760 105.00VTP-017747

Total : 362.35

188748 8/28/2020 017584  RELADYNE 1299724-IN 5W-20 BULK OIL
01-12-000-72540 50.00VTP-018006
01-33-300-72540 100.00VTP-018006
01-21-000-73535 100.00VTP-018006
01-19-020-73535 50.00VTP-018006
01-26-024-73535 50.00VTP-018006
01-26-023-73535 75.00VTP-018006
01-17-205-73535 525.00VTP-018006
01-42-000-73535 50.00VTP-018006
60-00-000-73535 28.49VTP-018006
63-00-000-73535 9.50VTP-018006
64-00-000-73535 16.28VTP-018006

Total : 1,054.27

188749 8/28/2020 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 20080193 19-R0866 191ST/80TH AV PHASE II S
30-00-000-75806 8,223.00
11-320 TP BOULEVARD AT CENTRA20080267
27-00-000-72840 1,857.50
20-R0005.014 FY'20 PMP RESURFA20080268
05-00-000-72840 19,684.00
06-00-000-72840 22,857.75
20-R0499 TP COMMUNITY RATING 20080269
65-00-000-72840 1,676.00

13Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
14

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188749 8/28/2020 (Continued)006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD.
20-R0521 TP FREEDOM POND DEC20080393
65-00-000-72840 2,250.00

Total : 56,548.25

188750 8/28/2020 006874  ROBINSON ENGINEERING CO. LTD. 20080086 16-R0402 PAY#27 17-B6125-00-EG 1
33-00-000-75806 11,466.17

Total : 11,466.17

188751 8/28/2020 019092  RORY GROUP, LLC 3306 BUSINESS CONSULTING FEE FEB'2
01-11-000-72790 3,000.00
BUSINESS CONSULTING FEE MARC3327
01-11-000-72790 3,000.00
BUSINESS CONSULTING FEE JUL'23409
01-11-000-72790 3,000.00
BUSINESS CONSULTING FEE AUG'3433
01-11-000-72790 3,000.00

Total : 12,000.00

188752 8/28/2020 007092  SAUNORIS 633379 SOD AND PALLET CHARGE
01-26-023-73680 704.00
SOD AND PALLET CHARGE633476
01-26-023-73680 334.00
TOP SOIL 6 YARDS634142
01-26-023-73680 210.00
PLAY/POOL SAND/  1910 LBS634393
01-26-023-73860 42.98

Total : 1,290.98

188753 8/28/2020 018104  SBA STEEL,LLC IN14054287 TOWER SITE RENT #IL46494-A-03 S
60-00-000-72631 182.33
63-00-000-72631 182.33
64-00-000-72631 182.33
01-17-205-72631 364.65
01-19-000-72631 303.87

Total : 1,215.51

14Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
15

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188754 8/28/2020 019209  SEWER ASSESSMENT SERVICES, LLC 081120 SMOKE TESTING JULY'20
61-00-000-75305 18,611.04VTP-017735

Total : 18,611.04

188755 8/28/2020 007577  SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 2246-7 PAINT-STREETS
01-26-023-72540 400.00
PAINT FOR OPA KISS AND RIDE5243-2
01-26-025-73620 44.18

Total : 444.18

188756 8/28/2020 007109  SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LABS 0455735-IN 3ML STERILE WATER
01-17-225-73550 47.75VTP-017949
SECURSWAB 2 100 EACH0456009-IN
01-17-225-73550 283.93VTP-017949

Total : 331.68

188757 8/28/2020 013043  SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. 7954PH2-02 PHASE II LEGACY POND LANDSCA
16-00-000-75315 1,440.00VTP-017776

Total : 1,440.00

188758 8/28/2020 019565  SRG COMMERCIAL SERVICES 082620 CONTRACTOR NO LONGER DOING
01-14-000-79010 50.00

Total : 50.00

188759 8/28/2020 015585  STALKER RADAR 369927 AED CASES
01-17-220-74142 330.00

Total : 330.00

188760 8/28/2020 015452  STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S006696977.001 OUTLET COVERS
01-26-025-73570 35.66

Total : 35.66

188761 8/28/2020 019432  STERN BROTHERS & CO 114 TIF 159TH/HARLEM PHASE III-ADOP
01-14-000-72790 8,000.00

Total : 8,000.00

188762 8/28/2020 014793  STS TOWING 8005 TOWING SERVICES
01-17-220-72753 50.00

15Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
16

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 50.00188762 8/28/2020 014793 014793  STS TOWING

188763 8/28/2020 007297  SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 510029 ARM ADJ,ROD,RETAINER,INSULATO
01-17-205-72540 290.32
ACCUMULATOR ASY510134
01-17-205-72540 37.15
AIR CONDITIONER510135
01-26-023-72540 190.08
A/C SWITCH AND WIRE510173
01-17-205-72540 40.31

Total : 557.86

188764 8/28/2020 018724  THE LOCKER SHOP 76985 TACLITE PRO SHORTS
01-19-000-73610 51.00
REDBACK 6"SLIP ON STEEL TOE B77186
01-19-000-73610 159.00
CAP,T-SHIRT,SWEATPANTSES 76837
01-19-000-73610 146.00
STEEL TOE BOOT,T-SHIRT,LONG SES 77549
01-19-000-73610 311.00
T-SHIRTS,LONG SLEEVE,BELTOES 774543
01-19-000-73610 182.00
T-SHIRTS  AND SHORTSOES 77541
01-19-000-73610 271.00
T-SHIRT,MESH CAP,BEANIE CAP,SOES 77542
01-19-000-73610 112.00
T-SHIRT,FULL ZIP SHIRT,LONG SLEOES 77544
01-19-000-73610 247.00
CAP,TSHIRT,BELTOES 77545
01-19-000-73610 64.00
T-SHIRT,REDBACK 6"SLIP ON STEEOES 77546
01-19-000-73610 245.00
SHIRT AND T-SHRT WITH EMBROIDOES 77547
01-19-000-73610 68.00
CARGO PANT,SHORT,WORK SHIRTOES 77548
01-19-000-73610 249.00
SHORT,FULL ZIP WORK SHIRT,LONOES 77550

16Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
17

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188764 8/28/2020 (Continued)018724  THE LOCKER SHOP
01-19-000-73610 146.00
T-SHIRT,SHORT,STEEL TOE BOOTSOES 77551
01-19-000-73610 291.00

Total : 2,542.00

188765 8/28/2020 007777  THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION 20-2108 ELEVATOR INSPECTION EDENBRID
01-33-300-72853 75.00

Total : 75.00

188766 8/28/2020 019569  TINLEY PARK MARKET PLACE Ref001395242 UB Refund Cst #00494482
60-00-000-20599 42.00

Total : 42.00

188767 8/28/2020 019006  TRAFFIC CONTROL COMPANY 18294 PAVEMENT STRIPING
01-26-023-75802 24,828.14VTP-017855

Total : 24,828.14

188768 8/28/2020 019562  TUNNEY, FRANCIE 082620 OPA PARKING SPACE REFUND
70-00-000-79000 105.00

Total : 105.00

188769 8/28/2020 007987  UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 090120 SEPT'20 PARKING RENTAL
70-00-000-72621 1,200.00

Total : 1,200.00

188770 8/28/2020 011416  VERIZON WIRELESS 9860704994 ACCT 280481333-00001
11-00-000-72127 73.73
01-11-000-72127 216.06
01-12-000-72127 144.04
01-13-000-72127 36.01
60-00-000-72127 189.07
64-00-000-72127 189.07
63-00-000-72127 162.07
01-16-000-72127 242.78
01-17-220-72127 1,696.57
01-17-205-72127 504.20

17Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
18

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188770 8/28/2020 (Continued)011416  VERIZON WIRELESS
01-19-000-72127 540.23
01-19-020-72127 108.03
01-21-000-72127 252.07
01-26-023-72127 540.15
01-26-025-72127 216.06
01-33-300-72127 144.04
01-33-310-72127 108.03
01-33-320-72127 108.03
01-35-000-72127 97.58
ACCT 2804813333-000039860704995
64-00-000-72120 233.67
60-00-000-72120 233.67
01-16-000-72120 218.47
01-17-205-72120 4,176.43
01-19-020-72120 218.37
01-21-210-72120 214.69
01-26-024-72120 178.20
01-26-025-72120 304.89
01-33-300-72120 192.89
01-21-000-72120 128.46
01-33-310-72120 132.17
01-33-320-72120 42.23
01-35-000-72120 63.56
63-00-000-72120 200.30
01-11-000-72120 260.34
01-12-000-72120 126.69
01-13-000-72120 84.46
01-14-000-72120 12.99
01-15-000-72120 84.63
01-19-000-72120 226.44
01-26-023-72120 1,237.57

Total : 14,138.94

188771 8/28/2020 019460  VIKING ELECTRIC S003885248.001 ELECTRICAL 12X12X12 BOX AND B
01-26-024-73570 373.69

18Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
19

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total : 373.69188771 8/28/2020 019460 019460  VIKING ELECTRIC

Bank total : 1,006,696.3387 Vouchers for bank code : apbank

19Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
20

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2748 8/25/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200515W005 PAYEE-INGALLS HEALTH SYSTEM
60-00-000-72542 175.31
63-00-000-72542 33.39
64-00-000-72542 89.44

Total : 298.14

2749 8/25/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200721W022 PAYEE-INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL H
01-14-000-72542 57.86

Total : 57.86

2750 8/25/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200721W022-2 PAYEE-INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL H
01-14-000-72542 57.86

Total : 57.86

2751 8/25/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200817W009 PAYEE-MINUTEMAN SECURITY TEC
01-14-000-72542 17,726.53

Total : 17,726.53

2752 8/25/2020 018837  INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 190514W019 PAYEE-PETERSON JOHNSON & MU
01-14-000-72542 195.00

Total : 195.00

Bank total : 18,335.395 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg

1,025,031.72Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report92

20Page:



08/28/2020
Voucher List

Village of Tinley Park
21

 9:16:37AM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : ipmg

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.

In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.

______________________________Village President

______________________________Village Clerk

______________________________Date

21Page:



Page | 61AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 62AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 63AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 64AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 65AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 66AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 67AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 68AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 69AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 70AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 71AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 72AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 73AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 74AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 75AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 76AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 77AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 78AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 79AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 80AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 81AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 82AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 83AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 84AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 85AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 86AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 87AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 88AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 89AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 90AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 91AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 92AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 93AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 94AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 95AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 96AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 97AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 98AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 99AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 100AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 101AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 102AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 103AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 104AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 105AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 106AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 107AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 108AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 109AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 110AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 111AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 112AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 113AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 114AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 115AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 116AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 117AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 118AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 119AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 120AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 121AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 122AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 123AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 124AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 125AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 126AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 127AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 128AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 129AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 130AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 131AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 132AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 133AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 134AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 135AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 136AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 137AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 138AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 139AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 140AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 141AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 142AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 143AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 144AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 145AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 146AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 147AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 148AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 149AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 150AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 151AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 152AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 153AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 154AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 155AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 156AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 157AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 158AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 159AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 160AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 161AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 162AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 163AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 164AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 165AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 166AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 167AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 168AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 169AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 170AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 171AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 172AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 173AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 174AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 175AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 176AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 177AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 178AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 179AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 180AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 181AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 182AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 183AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 184AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 185AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 186AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 187AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 188AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 189AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 190AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 191AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 192AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 193AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 194AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 195AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 196AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 197AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 198AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 199AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 200AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 201AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 202AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 203AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 204AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 205AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 206AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 207AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 208AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 209AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 210AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 211AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 212AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 213AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 214AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 215AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 216AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 217AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 218AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 219AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 220AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 221AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 222AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 223AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 224AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 225AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 226AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 227AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 228AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



                                             
Finance Department Memorandum 
To: Village Board 

From: Brad Bettenhausen, Treasurer 

Date: 24 August 2020 

Re: Tinley Park Plaza redevelopment incentive request – Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza LLC 

 
Accompanying this memo, for your consideration, is Resolution 2020-R-085 containing the 
Redevelopment Agreement between Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza, LLC (Brixmor) and the 
Village related to proposed renovations to the Tinley Park Plaza shopping center on the east 
side of Harlem Avenue south of 159th Street (15903-16205 Harlem).  The small retail center 
immediately at the southeast corner of 159th and Harlem (15901 Harlem) is not part of this 
shopping center. 
 
Proposed Incentive 
Brixmor has proposed renovations and upgrades to the Tinley Park Plaza shopping center at an 
estimated total cost of $21.9 million.  The project is further detailed later in this memo.  “But 
for” the Village’s assistance toward the project, the renovations would not be able to move 
forward and current tenant interest in locating in the center would be lost and the shopping 
center would be adversely impacted. 
 
The Village has offered financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $9.9 million, or 50% of 
the actual project costs, whichever is lower.  This assistance will be funded by a combination of 
TIF incremental revenues generated by the shopping center properties alone, and incremental 
municipal sales taxes (1%) generated by all the businesses located in the shopping center over a 
ten (10) year period.  A maximum of $8.1 million of TIF eligible costs are to be paid from the TIF 
increment generated, with the remainder ($1.8 million) to be paid from incremental sales taxes.  
The portion of the incentive to be funded between the TIF eligible costs and sales tax can 
fluctuate based on actual expenses, but in addition to the overall $9.9 million cap on the 
financial assistance noted earlier, the amount that can be provided from the incremental 
municipal sales tax component cannot exceed $2.5 million.   
 
Under long established fiscal policies regarding incentives, the Village does not look to share 
sales taxes it may be already receiving.  In business expansion and redevelopment agreements 
such as this, we have always looked to share a portion of the increased (incremental) taxes that 
are expected to result.  Following these principles, incremental sales taxes are computed in 
reference to a base using the 1% municipal sales taxes generated collectively by the shopping 
center retailers during calendar 2019.      If a retailer currently located elsewhere in Tinley Park 
relocates to the Tinley Park Plaza during the term of the agreement, the sales taxes they 
generated over a preceding twelve (12) month period will be added to the base.  However, in 

Page | 229AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



the incentive year where a Tinley business has first relocated, the amount attributable to the 
base will be pro-rated based on how many months of that incentive year the business was 
operating in the Tinley Park Plaza (this compares their sales taxes after locating in the center 
with a comparable base for the “short” period of less than one year).  
 
As with most of the Village’s incentive agreements, the burden is heavily on the developers to 
achieve the maximum amount of the incentive.  If the property or sales tax increments do not 
materialize at the levels anticipated to fulfill the total support offered, it directly affects the 
amount of assistance that will be provided over the ten-year period of the agreement.  
Conversely, if the project is successful in attracting new retail to the center, as is anticipated, it is 
also possible for the agreement to be fulfilled in less than the ten years provided under the 
agreement. 
 
Encapsulated History of the Tinley Park Plaza Shopping Center 
The Tinley Park Plaza shopping center (15903-16205 Harlem Avenue) began development in 
approximately 1974, and was expanded circa 1984-1988 which added Walt’s Food Store and 
Builders Square as primary anchors.  Façade and other site improvements to the center were 
undertaken in 1992.  Although there have been several mergers, acquisitions, and related name 
changes, the shopping center has been beneficially owned by the Brixmor Property Group 
(specifically Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza LLC) since 1995.  The south end of the plaza was 
renovated circa 2003-2006 with a primary focus on redeveloping space which had been 
previously occupied by Builders Square (~1988-1999) which anchored the south end of the 
center following the termination of the lease by Kmart Corporation.  This renovation resulted in 
the addition of a new free-standing outlot building set closer to Harlem Avenue (16205 Harlem) 
as well as newly designed tenant spaces (currently The Tile Shop through Dollar Tree).  In 2015-
2016, an additional free-standing building was constructed at the north end of the center (15903-
15915 Harlem), generally mirroring the building at the opposite end of the center.  A portion of 
the in-line retail spaces was demolished and reconfigured as additional parking.  The currently 
proposed renovations are expected to revitalize the shopping center for years to come. 

Current Shopping Center status 
There is currently approximately 251,500 square feet in this retail center including the two free-
standing outlot buildings.  Of this, approximately 230,000 square feet lies in the in-line center 
along the eastern side of the property.  Placing the storefronts in a continuous row set back 
away from the road, with the field of parking in front, was the typical configuration for 
shopping centers at the time this plaza was developed.  Within the main in-line building, 
approximately 83,000 square feet (over 36%) is currently vacant.  Some of this vacancy has 
resulted from companies who have ceased operations or have relocated.  In the process, the 
plaza has lost some of its prior anchor tenants.  The owners are aware of certain existing leases 
that are not expected to be renewed which would add to the vacancies.  Brixmor has found 
success in leasing the newer renovated spaces, but finds that the older spaces are becoming 
increasingly difficult to fill, particularly in light of the changing needs and demands of “brick 
and mortar” retailers.  The vacancies offer additional challenges in their marketing efforts. 

Proposed Improvements 
Brixmor representatives contacted the Village approximately a year ago with an ambitious 
phased renovation plan intended to update and breathe new life into the shopping center.  They 
were envisioning creating a potential dining and entertainment destination, and was seeking 

Page | 230AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Village financial assistance to move the plan forward.  Their initial assistance request had 
sought a significant sharing of sales taxes generated by the shopping center, which has been a 
common tool used by the Village (and other municipalities) to support new development and 
redevelopment alike with a goal toward increased sales tax revenues, employment 
opportunities, and reducing the government’s reliance on property taxes.  However, the 
amount of the request, and the proposed structure of the sharing request far exceeded the 
Village’s established fiscal policies that have been developed and adopted by the Board over the 
past four decades.  When the Village’s policies were applied to the request, the amount of 
potential support that could be provided was far less than their request and need. 

In the subsequent months, the has Village explored and approved the creation of the 159th and 
Harlem TIF (Tax Increment Financing) District.  The new TIF is expected to add options for 
providing financial assistance within the boundaries of this commercial TIF which includes 
significant retail spaces at the crossroads of the two heavily traveled highways that are 
referenced in the naming of the TIF.  In the planning process for the TIF, the Village has also 
identified several public improvements that can enhance esthetics and accessibility to these 
commercial areas by pedestrians and vehicles alike, as well as replacement of aging 
infrastructure which serve this commercial corridor.   

While the COVID-19 pandemic significantly altered the owner’s earlier vision of creating a 
dining and entertainment destination, they have been successful in getting two retailers under 
contract that intend to occupy approximately 63,500 square feet of retail space.  Both retailers 
have established stringent requirements for the delivery of the renovated space and Brixmor 
has  been working diligently to be able to meet those deadlines.  The initial phase of the project 
entails demolition of approximately 87,000 square feet of the in-line center and construction of 
new retail spaces to accommodate the retailers under contract, as well as others yet to be 
determined. 

The center’s long-time grocery store tenant will be vacating its 39,000 square foot space before 
the end of 2021 by their own choosing.  The next phase of renovations include redevelopment of 
that vacated space and adjacent building area, to create new tenant spaces.  The remaining 
phase of the redevelopment will include improvements to the north end of the in-line center.  
The planned project will bifurcate the current in-line center into two separate buildings.  This 
will provide improved and more efficient access to the rear of the center for loading docks and 
service entrances essential for deliveries to the tenants.  The tenants currently under contract to 
occupy the renovated space, along with the enhanced retail spaces to be created, are expected to 
create a synergy that should aid in drawing other retailers to establish locations in the center, 
reducing the vacancy levels and increasing customer traffic which would be expected to 
provide long term benefits to the retailers, Brixmor, and the Village. 

If recommended for approval, this Resolution would be placed for first reading on the 1 
September agenda with final approval on 15 September.  Should you have any questions 
regarding this agreement or the planned renovations, please do not hesitate to contact. 

Page | 231AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

 
 

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook County, Illinois  
Will County, Illinois 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
NO. 2020-R-085 

 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BRIXMOOR INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 
PERTAINING TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE TINLEY PARK PLAZA SHOPPING 

CENTER LOCATED AT 15903-16205 HARLEM AVENUE     
 
 

 
 

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT 
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

 
CYNTHIA A. BERG 

WILLIAM P. BRADY 
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ 

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN 
DIANE M. GALANTE 

MICHAEL G. MUELLER 
Board of Trustees 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park 

Peterson, Johnson, and Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys 
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL  60606 

  
  

Page | 232AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 
NO. 2020-R-085 

 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
Cook and Will Counties, Illinois 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BRIXMOOR IA TINLEY PARK PLAZA, LLC 
INCENTIVE AGREEMENT PERTAINING TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

TINLEY PARK PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER LOCATED AT 15903-16205 HARLEM 
AVENUE     

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park  (“Village”), is a home rule municipality pursuant 

to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and as such may 
exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs (the “Home 
Rule Powers”); and  

WHEREAS, the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et 
seq. (hereinafter referred to as the "TIF Act"}, authorizes the Village to establish Tax Increment 
Financing Districts in qualify under the eligibility requirements set forth by the TIF Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, Tax Increment Financing Districts are economic development tools that spur 

development, redevelopment, and further enhance designated areas of the Village through an 
approved development/redevelopment plan and project (hereinafter referred to as the “TIF Plan”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2020, the Village approved the 159th and Harlem TIF District 

and TIF Plan, said TIF Plan contains an eligibility study of the area proposed for designation as 
the redevelopment project area for the 252-acre district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TIF Plan sets forth the conditions in the Redevelopment Project Area 

qualifying the Redevelopment Project Area as a “blighted area,” and the President and Board of 
Trustees of the Village have reviewed testimony concerning said conditions presented at the Public 
Hearing and are generally informed of the conditions causing the Redevelopment Project Area to 
qualify as a “blighted area," as said term is defined in Section 5/11-74.4-3 of the TIF Act (65 ILCS 
5/11-74.4-3); and 

 
WHEREAS, Tinley Park Plaza resides within the boundaries Set forth by the 159th and 

Harlem TIF district located at 15903-16205 Harlem Avenue, 
  
WHEREAS, Tinley Park Plaza began development in 1974, multiple expansions and 

improvements have been facilitated in the shopping center in 1984-88, 1992, 1995, 2003-06, and 
2015-16; and 

Page | 233AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

WHEREAS, Tinley Park Plaza is experiencing a significant number of vacancies within 
the center, deterioration in the condition of the buildings and property in general, including but not 
limited to public and private infrastructure, and is experiencing continually decreasing Equalized 
Assessed Valuation (EAV); and 

  
 WHEREAS, Tinley Park Plaza will continue to experience vacancies, deterioration, and 
declining EAV but for investment in the property; and  
  

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park and all taxing bodies with a vested interest in 
Tinley Park Plaza understand that the continued operation, filling of vacancies, modernizing the 
look of, and overall improvements to the shopping center are in all party’s best interest; and 

 
WHEREAS, the improvements needed can be accomplished through a public/private 

partnership to share in the funds generated by the redevelopment of the shopping center and said 
funds can be reinvested back into the shopping center to further revitalize Tinley Park Plaza 
shopping center.  

 
WHEREAS, the Village, has previously negotiated and now desires to enter into an 

Incentive Agreement (“Agreement”) with Brixmoor IA Tinley Park Plaza, LLC (“Brixmoor 
Development”) pertaining to the development of the Tinley Park Plaza located at 15903-16205 
(“Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, said Agreement provides certain incentives to Brixmoor Development 

throughout the development phases of said Project if Brixmoor Development adheres to the 
Villages terms and conditions prescribed in the Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 

Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of Village of Tinley Park and its 
residents to enter into said Agreement with Brixmoor Development; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The above recitals and legislative findings are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as if fully 
set forth in its entirety. 

 
 

Section 2. Adopt Incentive Agreement.   That the President and Board of Trustees 
hereby approve said Agreement with Brixmoor IA Tinley Park Plaza Development pertaining to 
the development of The Tinley Park Plaza, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1; 
and the Village President and/or Village Manager are hereby authorized to execute said 
Agreement, subject to review and revision as to form by the Village Attorney.     

 

Page | 234AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

 
Section 3. Superseder.  Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that 

conflicts with the provisions of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict. 

 
Section 8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect following 

its passage and approval as provided by law. 
 
 
 

PASSED this 15th day of September, 2020 on a roll call vote as follow: 

AYES:  
  
NAYS:  
  
ABSENT:  
 
 

APPROVED this 15th day of September, 2020, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park. 

 
 
     ____________________________________ 
                           Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
      Village Clerk 
  

Page | 235AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

BRIXMOOR IA TINLEY PARK PLAZA INCENTIVE AGREEMENT PERTAINING TO 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF TINLEY PARK PLAZA LOCATED AT 15903 - 16205 

HARLEM AVENUE 

 
  

Page | 236AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

 

 
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 
COUNTY OF C O O K  )  SS 
COUNTY OF W I L L   ) 
 

CERTIFICATE 

 I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of TINLEY PARK, Counties of Cook and Will, 

and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2020-R-085:“A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BRIXMOOR IA TINLEY 

PARK PLAZA INCENTIVE AGREEMENT PERTAINING TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

TINLEY PARK PLAZA LOCATED AT 15903-16205 HARLEM AVENUE,” which was adopted 

by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on September 15, 2020. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of  

the Village of Tinley Park this _______ day of September, 20___.  

 

 
____________________________________ 

       KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK  
 

Page | 237AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

1 

 1 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 2 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 3 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 4 
(TINLEY PARK PLAZA PHASE I PROJECT) 5 

THIS REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 6 

this ___ day of September, 2020 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the VILLAGE OF 7 

TINLEY PARK, an Illinois municipal corporation (the “Village”) and BRIXMOR IA TINLEY 8 

PARK PLAZA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Developer”), (the Village and 9 

Developer are hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the “Parties,” and individually as 10 

a “Party”, as the context may require). 11 

W I T N E S E T H: 12 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, as amended 13 

from time to time (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et seq.) (the “Act”), the Village has undertaken a program 14 

to redevelop certain property within the Village which is generally bounded as follows: 159th 15 

Street on the north (except for certain parcels west of Oak Park Avenue and north of 159th Street), 16 

the northern boundary of Siemsen Meadows (165th Street, extended) on the south, Oak Park 17 

Avenue on the east, and Olcott Avenue on the west (the “Redevelopment Project Area”).  The 18 

Redevelopment Project Area is legally described and depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and 19 

made apart hereof; and 20 

WHEREAS, on August 18, 2020, the President and Board of Trustees (the “Corporate 21 

Authorities”) of the Village, after giving all necessary notices and conducting all necessary 22 

meetings and public hearings required by the Act, adopted the following ordinances (collectively 23 

the “TIF Ordinances”):  (A) Ordinance No. 2020-O-44: An Ordinance Designating the Tax 24 

Increment Redevelopment Project Area; (B) Ordinance No. 2020-O-45: An Ordinance Approving 25 

Page | 238AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

2 

the 159th and Harlem Redevelopment Plan and Redevelopment Project; and (C) Ordinance No. 26 

2020-O-46:  An Ordinance Adopting Tax Increment Financing; and 27 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the fee title holder of the property legally described and 28 

depicted in Exhibit B attached hereto and made apart hereof; and 29 

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the boundaries of the Redevelopment Project 30 

Area; and 31 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently improved with an out of date, underperforming 32 

shopping center which was originally built in approximately 1974 and which currently consists of 33 

approximately 248,000 square feet of retail space and outparcels (the “Shopping Center”); and 34 

WHEREAS, Approximately 85,000 square feet of the Shopping Center are vacant today.  35 

An additional 39,000 square feet, currently occupied by a grocery tenant, will become vacant in 36 

early to mid-2021. 37 

WHEREAS, faced with significant existing and prospective vacancies, the Developer 38 

proposes to undertake a major capital investment in the Property and the Shopping Center, 39 

including the demolition of approximately 87,000 square feet of existing buildings on roughly the 40 

north half of the Shopping Center, the construction of the core and shell of new retail space to 41 

accommodate (A) an approximately 38,500 square foot grocery tenant (the “Grocery Tenant”) and 42 

an approximately 25,000 square foot retail tenant (the “Retail Tenant”) and (B) certain general 43 

improvements to the northern half of the Shopping Center (including façade, landscaping, parking 44 

lot upgrades and rehabilitation and signage) (the “Project”); and 45 

WHEREAS, in addition to the Project, the Developer anticipates undertaking additional 46 

work on the north half of the Shopper Center including, but not limited to, build out of new tenant 47 

Page | 239AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

3 

space, rehabilitation of existing tenant space and general improvements to the overall Shopping 48 

Center within 48 months of the Effective Date (the “Additional Work”).   49 

WHEREAS, the Village has approved preliminary site, engineering and landscape plans 50 

as part of a planned unit development (the “Project Plans”) for the Project, and the Project Plans, 51 

as may be amended from time to time, are attached hereto as Exhibit C; and 52 

WHEREAS, the Developer has estimated that the hard and soft costs for the Project and 53 

the Additional Work are approximately $21.9 million (the “Project Budget”) as set forth on Exhibit 54 

D attached hereto; and 55 

WHEREAS, to facilitate the development and construction of the Project and the 56 

Additional Work and subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Village 57 

has agreed to reimburse the Developer for certain Project and Additional Work costs solely from 58 

Available Incremental Taxes and Incremental Sales Taxes, as those terms are defined below; and 59 

WHEREAS, the Developer has agreed to develop and construct the Project and, as needed, 60 

complete the Additional Work, in accordance with this Agreement, all Village codes, ordinances 61 

and regulations (except to the extent the Village has granted relief therefrom), as applicable to the 62 

Project Plans, and all other governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Property and the 63 

Project; and 64 

WHEREAS, the Developer represents and warrants to the Village, and the Village finds 65 

that, but for the financial assistance to be provided by the Village to the Developer pursuant to this 66 

Agreement, the Project, together with the Additional Work, would not be economically viable and, 67 

concomitantly, it is not reasonably anticipated that the Developer would develop and construct the 68 

Project and undertake the Additional Work as contemplated; and 69 

Page | 240AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

4 

WHEREAS, this Agreement has been submitted to the Corporate Authorities of the Village 70 

for consideration and review, and the Corporate Authorities and the Developer have taken all 71 

actions required to be taken prior to approval and execution of this Agreement in order to make 72 

the same binding upon the Village and the Developer according to the terms hereof; and 73 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village, after due and careful consideration, 74 

have concluded that (A) the Developer meets high standards of creditworthiness on the basis it 75 

will deploy its own capital to finance the Project (B) the development and construction of the 76 

Project as provided herein will increase occupancy at the Shopping Center where the buildings 77 

have been significantly underutilized for more than one year,  further the growth of the Village, 78 

facilitate the redevelopment of a portion of the Redevelopment Project Area, improve the 79 

environment of the Village, increase the assessed valuation of the real estate situated within the 80 

Village, increase sales tax revenue, foster increased economic activity within the Village’s 81 

commercial sectors, increase employment opportunities within the Village by creating and 82 

retaining jobs, improve the retail base of the Village and attract new tenants to the Shopping Center 83 

and other retail properties in the Village, is in the best interest of the Village, and is otherwise in 84 

the best interests of the Village by furthering the health, safety, morals and welfare of its residents 85 

and taxpayers; and (C) without the financial assistance contemplated by this Agreement, the 86 

Project would not be feasible; and  87 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its Authority under (A) the Act; (B) its home rule powers under 88 

the Article VII, Section 6 of the Illinois Constitution; and (C) Economic Development Act of the 89 

Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/8-1-2.5 pertaining to economic incentive agreements, the 90 

Village wishes to enter into this Agreement with the Developer. 91 

Page | 241AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

5 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and 92 

agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 93 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Village and the Developer do hereby agree as 94 

follows: 95 

 96 
ARTICLE I 97 

RECITALS PART OF THE AGREEMENT 98 

The representations, covenants and recitations set forth in the foregoing recitals are 99 

material to this Agreement and are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement as 100 

though they were fully set forth in this Article I. 101 

ARTICLE II 102 
DEVELOPER OBLIGATIONS 103 

2.1 Developer Obligations and Agreements.  In consideration of the substantial 104 

commitment of the Village to the redevelopment of the Redevelopment Project Area pursuant to 105 

the TIF Ordinances and its commitments contained in this Agreement, the Developer shall fulfill, 106 

or has fulfilled, the following obligations: 107 

A. The Developer shall construct the Project substantially in accordance with 108 

the Project Plans, and the Developer shall use commercially reasonable 109 

efforts to complete the Project on or before December 31, 2021, subject to 110 

any Force Majeure Delays (as defined below) and extraordinary 111 

construction delays; provided, however, that if Developer has not 112 

commenced construction of the Project on or before June 31, 2021, the 113 

either Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.  The Developer 114 

shall use commercially reasonable efforts to complete the Additional Work 115 

on or before December 31, 2024 (the “Outside Additional Work Date”). 116 

Page | 242AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

6 

B. The Developer has advanced, shall hereafter advance, or shall cause other 117 

parties to advance the funds necessary to construct and complete the Project 118 

and the Additional Work. 119 

C. The Developer has secured, or shall hereafter secure or cause to be secured, 120 

all required permits, entitlements, authorizations and approvals necessary 121 

or required to construct and complete the Project and the Additional Work. 122 

D. In the event a claim is made against the Village, its officers, officials, agents 123 

and employees or any of them, or if the Village, its officers, officials, agents 124 

and employees or any of them (the “Indemnified Party” or “Indemnified 125 

Parties”), is made a party-defendant in any proceeding arising out of or in 126 

connection with the Developer’s construction, operation, duties, obligations 127 

and responsibilities under the terms of this Agreement, the Project or the 128 

Additional Work including, but not limited to, any claim or cause of action 129 

concerning construction of the Project or Additional Work and, matters 130 

pertaining to hazardous materials and other environmental matters in 131 

existence as of the date of this Agreement, to the extent permitted by law, 132 

the Developer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Indemnified 133 

Parties, or any Indemnified Party, from all claims, liabilities, losses, taxes, 134 

judgments, costs, fines, fees, including expenses and reasonable attorney’s 135 

fees, in connection therewith (collectively, “Losses”); provided, however, 136 

that to the extent that any Losses are caused by the negligence, fraud or 137 

willful misconduct of one or more Indemnified Parties, the Developer shall 138 

have no obligation to indemnify such Indemnified Parties for any such 139 

Page | 243AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

7 

Losses.  Any such Indemnified Party may obtain separate counsel to 140 

participate in the defense thereof at his or her own expense.  The 141 

Indemnified Parties shall cooperate in the defense of such proceedings and 142 

be available for any litigation related appearances which may be required.  143 

Further, the Developer shall be entitled to settle any and all claims for 144 

money, in such amounts and upon such terms as to payment as it may deem 145 

appropriate, without the prior approval or consent of the Indemnified 146 

Parties, or any of them, as the case may be, provided that neither the Village 147 

nor any of the other Indemnified Parties shall be required to contribute to 148 

such settlement except to the extent that Losses that are the subject of the 149 

settlement are caused by the negligence, fraud or willful misconduct of an 150 

Indemnified Party. 151 

E. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, none of the Indemnified 152 

Parties shall not be liable to the Developer for damages of any kind or nature 153 

whatsoever or otherwise in the event that, except where due to the 154 

negligence, fraud or willful misconduct of one or more of the Indemnified 155 

Parties, all or any part of the Act, or any of the TIF Ordinances or other 156 

ordinances of the Village adopted in connection with either the Act or this 157 

Agreement, shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in part 158 

by the final (as to which all rights of appeal have expired or have been 159 

exhausted) judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, and by reason 160 

thereof either the Village is prevented from performing any of the 161 

covenants  and agreements herein or the Developer is prevented from 162 

Page | 244AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

8 

enjoying the rights and privileges hereof; provided that nothing in this 163 

Section 2.1.E shall limit otherwise permissible claims by the Developer 164 

against the Village or actions by the Developer seeking specific 165 

performance of this Agreement or payment of amounts due in the event of 166 

a breach of this Agreement by the Village. 167 

F. Upon reasonable notice, the Village Manager, or his designee, shall have 168 

access to all portions of the Project while it is under construction during 169 

normal business hours for the purpose of determining compliance with this 170 

Agreement, applicable laws and applicable regulations; provided, however, 171 

that any such person(s) shall comply with all construction site rules and 172 

regulations while such person(s) is on or near the Property.  Additionally, 173 

the Developer shall keep and maintain detailed accountings of expenditures 174 

demonstrating the total actual costs of the Developer’s Project  and 175 

Additional Work costs.  All such books, records and other documents, 176 

including but not limited to the general contractor’s and subcontractors’ 177 

sworn statements, general contracts, subcontracts, purchase orders, waivers 178 

of lien, paid receipts and invoices, and documentation evidencing that the 179 

Developer has incurred and paid any expense for which reimbursement as 180 

the Developer’s Project and Additional Work costs, including 181 

Redevelopment Project Costs, is sought by Developer hereunder shall be 182 

made available in electronic format for inspection, copying, audit and 183 

examination by an authorized representative of the Village for a period of 184 

one (1) year after issuance of the Certificate of Completion (as defined 185 

Page | 245AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

9 

below).  The Village shall treat all such information as confidential business 186 

materials, the disclosure of which would cause the Developer competitive 187 

harm.  As such, the Village shall not disclose any such information pursuant 188 

to a Freedom of Information Act request unless compelled to by the 189 

Attorney General or a court of competent jurisdiction. 190 

G. The Developer shall cooperate with the Village and provide the Village with 191 

the information in Developer’s possession or control required and necessary 192 

under the Act to enable the Village to comply with the Act and its 193 

obligations under this Agreement. 194 

H. The Developer shall comply with the fair employment/affirmative action 195 

principles contemplated by the Act and the TIF Ordinances, and with all 196 

applicable federal, state and municipal regulations in connection with the 197 

construction of the Project. 198 

I. The Developer has furnished to the Village a Project Budget showing total 199 

costs for the Project and the Additional Work in the amount of $21.9 million 200 

as set forth in Exhibit D.  The Developer hereby certifies to the Village that 201 

the Project Budget is true, correct and complete, to the best of the 202 

Developer’s knowledge, in all material respects.   203 

2.2 Representations and Warranties About Ownership.  The Developer represents, 204 

warrants and covenants that, to its knowledge, no member, official, officer, employee of the 205 

Village, or any commission or committee exercising authority over the Project or the Property, or 206 

any consultant hired by the Village or the Developer with respect thereto, owns or controls or has 207 

owned or controlled any interest, direct or indirect, in the Project or any portion of the Property, 208 

Page | 246AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

10 

or will own or control any interest in the Project, and that this Agreement will not violate Section 209 

5/11-74.4-4(n) of the Act.  Any representation or warranty made “to Seller’s actual knowledge” or 210 

similar terms shall not be deemed to imply any duty of inquiry.  For purposes of this Section 2.2, 211 

“knowledge” shall mean and refer only to the actual knowledge of the Developer’s general counsel 212 

and shall not be construed to refer to the knowledge of any other member, partner, officer, director, 213 

agent, employee or representative of the Developer or any affiliate of the Developer. 214 

2.3 Disclosure.  In accordance with Illinois law, 50 ILCS 105/3.1, simultaneously with 215 

the execution of this Agreement by the Parties, the Developer shall submit a sworn affidavit to the 216 

Village disclosing the identity of every owner and beneficiary having any interest, real or personal, 217 

in the Property, and every member, shareholder, limited partner, or general partner entitled to 218 

receive more than 7 1/2% of the total distributable income of the Developer.  The sworn affidavit 219 

shall be substantially similar to the one attached as Exhibit E, attached hereto and made a part of 220 

this Agreement. 221 

ARTICLE III 222 
VILLAGE OBLIGATIONS 223 

3.1 Village Economic Assistance.  In consideration of the substantial commitment of 224 

the Developer to the development and construction of the Project and the undertaking of the 225 

Additional Work and in order to induce the Developer to undertake the Project and the Additional 226 

Work, the Village shall provide economic assistance to the Developer by reimbursing it for up to 227 

Nine Million Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($9,900,000) in Project and 228 

Additional Work costs, or fifty percent (50%) of the Actual Project Costs, as defined in Section 229 

3.6(A) below, whichever is lesser (the “Maximum Reimbursement Amount”), by annual 230 

installment payments (the “Economic Assistance”).  The Parties agree that based on the Additional 231 

Work Outside Completion Date, the Parties shall memorialize the Actual Project Costs for the 232 

Page | 247AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

11 

Project and the Additional Work on or before March  30, 2025.  The Economic Assistance shall 233 

be comprised of Available Incremental Taxes, as defined in Section 3.2 below, and Incremental 234 

Sales Taxes, as defined in Section 3.3 below.  The Maximum Reimbursement Amount shall be 235 

reimbursed, to the extent the Developer has incurred Redevelopment Project Costs, by Available 236 

Incremental Taxes, with the remainder, if any, to be reimbursed by Incremental Sales Taxes, 237 

subject to the limitations described in Section 3.3.  By way of example: 238 

Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs are $8,100,000, with $1,800,000 in addition 239 

Project Costs which will be reimbursed from Available Incremental Taxes, and other 240 

Project and Additional Work costs estimated to be $1,800,000, which will be reimbursed 241 

from Incremental Sales Taxes.  However, upon completion of the Project, actual 242 

Redevelopment Project Costs are $7,200,000 and Actual Project Costs are $16,500,000. 243 

Therefore, available Incremental Sales Taxes are recalculated to $1,050,000 (($16,500,000 244 

x .5) - $7,200,000).  The Maximum Reimbursement Amount shall always be the lesser of 245 

(a) 50% of Actual Project Costs and (b) $9.9 million.  246 

3.2 Available Incremental Taxes.  Following issuance of the Certificate of 247 

Expenditure, as defined below, the Village shall reimburse the Developer from Available 248 

Incremental Taxes generated during the Available Incremental Tax Term for Redevelopment 249 

Project Costs incurred by the Developer.  The term “Available Incremental Taxes” shall mean one 250 

hundred percent (100%) of all net incremental ad valorem real property taxes received by the 251 

Village, if any, arising from the levies upon the Property attributable to the then current equalized 252 

assessed valuation of the Property over and above the initial equalized assessed value of the 253 

Property, all as determined pursuant to Section 5/11-74.4-8 of the Act and the TIF Ordinances.  254 

The Parties acknowledge that the initial equalized assessed value of the Property, as set forth in 255 

Page | 248AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

12 

the TIF Ordinances, is $11,664,000.00 and such amount shall be the basis for determining 256 

incremental taxes; provided, however, that if the final equalized assessed value of the Property is 257 

greater than $11,664,000.00 at the time the Developer commences the Project, then such greater 258 

assessed value shall be used for the determination of incremental taxes.  Upon commencement of 259 

the Project, the Village shall provide written verification of the equalized assessed value of the 260 

Property to be used for the purposes of calculating incremental taxes.  The term “Redevelopment 261 

Project Costs” shall mean and include all costs defined as “redevelopment project costs” in Section 262 

5/11-74.4-3(q) of the Act which are eligible for reimbursement under the Act and which have been 263 

approved in the TIF Ordinances.  The term “Available Incremental Tax Term” shall mean that 10-264 

year period, commencing on the date identified in the Developer Notice, as defined below, and 265 

ending 10 years thereafter.  Due to the uncertainty of when the Cook County Assessor’s Office 266 

will recognize the value of the Project improvements, the Developer shall be permitted to select 267 

the Collection Year, as defined below, in which the Available Incremental Tax Term shall 268 

commence by delivering written notice to the Village (the “Developer Notice”); provided, 269 

however, that the Collection Year selected by the Developer may be no later than Collection Year 270 

2024 and provided further that if the Developer has not delivered the Developer Notice on or 271 

before December 31, 2023, then the Available Incremental Tax Term shall be deemed to 272 

commence with Collection Year 2024.  The term “Collection Year” shall mean that calendar year 273 

in which real estate taxes are collected based on the prior calendar year in which properties are 274 

assessed.  By way of example, Collection Year 2024 the year in which real estate taxes are 275 

collected based on real estate assessments made in 2023.  The Parties anticipate that the Developer 276 

will incur approximately Eight Million One Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($8,100,000) 277 

in Redevelopment Project Costs, as set forth in Exhibit F attached hereto and made a part hereof.  278 

Page | 249AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

13 

However, the Parties agree that the actual Redevelopment Project Costs may increase or decrease 279 

upon the completion of the Project and the Additional Work.  To the extent that the Maximum 280 

Reimbursement Amount has not been paid, reimbursements from Available Incremental Taxes 281 

shall be made on or about February 1st following each Collection Year during the Available 282 

Incremental Tax Term and on or about February 1st following the last Collection Year of the 283 

Available Incremental Tax Term.  The Village shall include its calculations for each 284 

reimbursement payment in its transmittal of the reimbursement payment.   By way of example 285 

only, if the first year of the Available Incremental Tax Term is Collection Year 2022, then the first 286 

reimbursement payment from Available Incremental Taxes shall be made on or about February 1, 287 

2023.   288 

3.3 Incremental Sales Taxes.  Following the issuance of the Certificate of 289 

Expenditure, the Village agrees to reimburse Developer an amount consisting of the Maximum 290 

Reimbursement Amount less the Redevelopment Project Costs incurred by the Developer from 291 

Incremental Sales Taxes, as defined below.  Said portion of the Maximum Reimbursement Amount 292 

to be provided from Incremental Sales Taxes shall not exceed Two Million Five Hundred 293 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($2,500,000) (the “Maximum Incremental Sales Tax Amount”), 294 

to be calculated and reimbursed annually for a period of ten (10) years (the “Available Incremental 295 

Sales Tax Term”), or until the Maximum Reimbursement Amount is reached, whichever occurs 296 

first, in the following manner: 297 

A. Incremental Sales Tax Sharing Formula 298 

(1) The Village has calculated the Municipal Sales Taxes derived from 299 

(a) businesses located within the Shopping Center and (b) the Retail 300 

Tenant in calendar year 2019 to be $______________________ 301 

Page | 250AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

14 

[2019 LDS amount to be provided by the Village] (the “Sales Tax 302 

Base”).  The Village shall reimburse the Developer fifty percent 303 

(50%) of all Municipal Sales Taxes, as defined below, generated by 304 

businesses in the Shopping Center above the Sales Tax Base (the 305 

“Incremental Sales Tax”) annually beginning with the Initial Sales 306 

Tax Incentive Year, as defined below, and continuing for each 307 

Subsequent Sales Tax Incentive Year, as defined below, for a period 308 

of ten (10) years (the “Incremental Sales Tax Term”); provided, 309 

however, that the Incremental Sales Tax Term shall end prior to the 310 

10-year period upon the Developer’s receipt of the Maximum 311 

Reimbursement Amount or the Maximum Incremental Sales Tax 312 

Amount.   313 

B. Municipal Sales Taxes 314 

(1) The appropriate sales tax rate applicable to a sale is collected and 315 

remitted to the Illinois Department of Revenue (“IDOR”) by each 316 

retailer located in the Shopping Center in accordance to the 317 

schedules established by IDOR.  Subsequently, the IDOR distributes 318 

the municipal portion (1%) of the total sales taxes  reported pursuant 319 

to the Retailer’s Occupation Tax Act, 35 ILCS 120/1 et seq., and the 320 

Service Occupation Tax Act, 35 ILCS 115/1 et seq. (collectively, 321 

“Municipal Sales Taxes”) to the Village. 322 

(2) There is currently a three-month time lag between the month in 323 

which a retail sale subject to tax is completed, collected, and 324 

Page | 251AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

15 

remitted to the IDOR, and the month in which the Municipal Sales 325 

Taxes are distributed to the Village in total.  There is a further time 326 

lag before the IDOR makes information available to the Village to 327 

identify the breakdown of the Municipal Sales Taxes distributed by 328 

reporting businesses necessary for the determination of the portion 329 

of the Village’s total Municipal Sales Taxes applicable to this 330 

Agreement (e.g., Municipal  Sales Taxes for the liability/reporting 331 

month of January are distributed in April). 332 

(3) A breakdown of the Municipal Sales Taxes distributed by reporting 333 

businesses is provided to the Village by the IDOR, upon the request 334 

of certain authorized Village individuals, under the Reciprocal 335 

Agreement on Exchange of Information established between the 336 

Village and the IDOR (the “Reciprocal Agreement”).  This 337 

Reciprocal Agreement restricts the Village’s use of such 338 

information only for the official purposes of the State and the 339 

Village, and further requires that any information provided 340 

thereunder must remain confidential in accordance with the State 341 

law.  The Reciprocal Agreement and applicable State laws also 342 

severely limit the disclosure of business and sales tax information 343 

provided to either the State or the Village.  Accordingly, in relation 344 

to this Agreement, the Village may only disclose the Shopping 345 

Center’s total Municipal Sales Taxes for the Initial Incremental 346 

Sales Tax Year or Subsequent Incremental Sales Tax Year, as the 347 

Page | 252AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

16 

case may be. as established under this Agreement, provided that a) 348 

there is an aggregate of more than four businesses in the reporting 349 

period, and b) no single business constitutes a significant portion of 350 

said aggregate total whereby said single business would remain 351 

substantially recognizable. As a result of these restrictions, while the 352 

Village currently does not expect this disclosure restriction will be 353 

applicable, there exists a possibility that the Village may not be able 354 

to disclose the calculation of Incremental Sales Tax under this 355 

agreement on an annual basis.  The Village agrees to perform 356 

reasonable due diligence in the determination of Municipal Sales 357 

Taxes relative to this Agreement. 358 

(4) The information obtained from the IDOR under the above 359 

referenced Reciprocal Agreement, as well as certain other 360 

confidential information that may be obtained by the Village from 361 

its local businesses from time to time, either separately or 362 

collectively, is exempt from disclosure under the Illinois Freedom 363 

of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/7) under subsection (a), as well as 364 

the Illinois Retailers’ Occupation Tax (35 ILCS 120/11). 365 

(5) It is specifically understood and agreed to by the Parties that for 366 

purposes of this Agreement, Municipal Sales Taxes, and Sales Tax 367 

Base, do not refer to, or include, the Home Rule Municipal 368 

Retailers’ Occupation Tax and Home Rule Service Occupation Tax 369 

(“Home Rule Sales Taxes”) imposed by the Village under 370 

Page | 253AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

17 

Ordinance No. 2014-O-001, adopted on March 4, 2014, and as may 371 

be amended from time to time.  The exclusion of the Home Rule 372 

Sales Taxes from any inducement or incentive agreement 373 

established after the imposition of the tax was specifically excluded 374 

in the enabling legislation. 375 

C. Changes to the Sales Tax Base 376 

(1) In the event that a one or more retailers relocate (each a “Relocating 377 

Retailer”) from another location in the Village to the Shopping 378 

Center prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the Sales Tax Base 379 

shall be recalculated to increase the Sales Tax Base to include the 380 

Relocating Retailer’s Municipal Sales Taxes (1%) from the most 381 

recent Initial Sales Tax Incentive Year or Subsequent Sales Tax 382 

Incentive Year, as applicable, prior to their relocation.  383 

By way of example:  384 

Initial Sales Tax Base of $100,000; In 2021, Relocating 385 

Retailer’s Municipal Sales Taxes at its vacated premises are 386 

$20,000.  In 2022, Relocating Retailer relocates to the 387 

Shopping Center.  Subject to the pro-ration provisions 388 

below, the Sales Tax Base will be recalculated to $120,000. 389 

(2) During the Initial Sales Tax Incentive Year or Subsequent Sales Tax 390 

Incentive Year, as applicable, of a Relocating Retailer’s operation 391 

in the Shopping Center, the Village shall pro-rate the Relocating 392 

Retailer’s contribution to the Sales Tax Base in the event the 393 

Page | 254AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

18 

Relocating Retailer’s start of operations in the Shopping Center does 394 

not correspond to the Initial Sales Tax Incentive Year or Subsequent 395 

Sales Tax Incentive Year.  Using the example in subsection (1) 396 

immediately above, assuming a Sales Tax Incentive Year runs 397 

December 1 to November 30 and further assuming Relocating 398 

Retailer relocates to the Shopping Center on February 1, the Sales 399 

Tax Base will only increase by 3/12ths of the $20,000 for that 400 

particular Sales Tax Incentive Year and then all $20,000 for all other 401 

Subsequent Sales Tax Incentive Years.  402 

(3) The Parties agree that in no event shall the Retail Tenant’s 403 

contributions to the Sales Tax Base be pro-rated. 404 

D. Sales Tax Incentive Year 405 

The “Initial Sales Tax Incentive Year” shall be that twelve (12) month 406 

period commencing on the first day of the full month that follows the month 407 

in which the Grocery Tenant has commenced operations.  Each subsequent 408 

12-month period is hereinafter referred to as the “Subsequent Sales Tax 409 

Incentive Year.” 410 

3.4 The Developer agrees and understands that:  (1) the sole source of funds for 411 

payment of the Economic Assistance is expressly limited to Available Incremental Taxes and 412 

Incremental Sales Taxes; (2) the Developer is assuming the risk that Available Incremental Taxes 413 

and Incremental Sales Taxes generated during the term of this Agreement may be less than the 414 

Maximum Reimbursement Amount; (3) the Developer will have no right to compel the exercise 415 

of any taxing power of the Village for payment of any of the reimbursement amounts; (4) the 416 

Page | 255AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

19 

Village’s reimbursement obligations pursuant to this Agreement do not and will not represent or 417 

constitute a general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Village, the State of Illinois 418 

or any political subdivision thereof; and (5) to the extent that the Developer has been fully 419 

reimbursed for all TIF eligible Redevelopment Project Costs, the sole source of funding for the 420 

remaining payments toward the Maximum Reimbursement Amount is Incremental Sales Taxes 421 

which is further limited to the Maximum Incremental Sales Tax Amount. 422 

3.5 In the event that IDOR changes its reporting of Municipal Sales Taxes such that it 423 

is not reasonably feasible for the Village to attribute Municipal Sales Taxes to retailer in the 424 

Shopping Center, Developer shall be responsible for duly executing appropriate agreements with 425 

any and all retail tenants in the Shopping Center requiring same, and require such tenants remain 426 

contemporaneous with the filing of sales tax reports with the IDOR or successor agency; and to 427 

furnish to the Village such authorization forms or other documents as may be required for purposes 428 

of identifying the Village’s sales tax revenues for the Shopping Center pursuant to this Agreement. 429 

Developer acknowledges in the event a retail tenant has multiple locations, only tax reporting for 430 

the location in the Shopping Center shall be included in the Village’s calculations under this 431 

Agreement.  Except where IDOR changes its reporting of Municipal Sales Taxes as contemplated 432 

in this Section 3.5, Developer acknowledges that calculations of the Incremental Sales Tax shall 433 

solely be based upon amounts reported by the IDOR. 434 

3.6 Timing of Reimbursement Payments. 435 

A. Upon completion of the Project, the Developer shall submit a Certificate of 436 

Expenditure, substantially in the form set forth on Exhibit G (the 437 

“Certificate of Expenditure”) to document and substantiate the amount of 438 

Project and Additional Work costs incurred by the Developer (the “Actual 439 

Page | 256AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

20 

Project Costs”), including Redevelopment Project Costs.  In addition to the 440 

Certificate of Expenditure, the Developer’s submission shall include such 441 

evidence reasonably acceptable to the Village that validates the Developer 442 

has incurred such Redevelopment Project Costs.  Such evidence shall 443 

include, but is not limited to, owner’s sworn statements, contractor and 444 

subcontractor lien waivers, invoices and cancelled checks related thereto, 445 

or such other documents as may be appropriate or required.  The Village 446 

shall approve the Certificate of Expenditure within thirty (30) days of 447 

receipt, provided that all necessary and sufficient supporting documentation 448 

has been supplied by the Developer.  Thereafter, the Developer may submit 449 

up to three requests for amendments to the Certificate of Expenditure to 450 

reflect additional Project and Additional Work costs provided that the 451 

Developer submits additional evidence reasonably acceptable to the Village 452 

that it has incurred such additional costs and such costs have not previously 453 

been reported; provided, however, that the latest date that the Developer 454 

may request to include costs in Actual Project Costs shall be March 30, 455 

2024.  All costs approved pursuant to a Certificate of Expenditure shall be 456 

included in the calculation of Actual Project Costs.  457 

B. To the extent that the Maximum Reimbursement Amount or the Maximum 458 

Incremental Sales Tax Amount has not been paid, reimbursements from 459 

Incremental Sales Taxes shall be made to the Developer on or about 180 460 

days after the end of the Initial Sales Tax Incentive Year and Subsequent 461 

Sales Tax Incentive Year, including the last year of the Incremental Sales 462 

Page | 257AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

21 

Tax Term.  By way of example only, Sales Tax Incentive Year commences 463 

on December 1, 2021, the first reimbursement payment from Incremental 464 

Sales Taxes shall be made on or about May 1, 2023.  In the event that, as of 465 

the reimbursement date following the Outside Additional Work Date, the 466 

amount of Incremental Sales Taxes actually paid to the Developer exceeds 467 

the amount of reimbursement from Incremental Sales Taxes due to the 468 

Developer based on the final calculation of Actual Project Costs, then the 469 

Developer shall repay such excess amount to the Village within 30 days of 470 

demand from the Village.  471 

3.7 Certificate of Completion.  Upon the Developer’s written request the Village shall 472 

issue to the Developer a Certificate of Completion in recordable form confirming that the 473 

Developer has fulfilled its obligation to complete the Project in accordance with the terms of this 474 

Agreement.  The Village shall issue the Certificate of Complete only upon (i) the Village’s 475 

determination of Developer’s satisfactory completion of the Project, and (ii) the Village’s approval 476 

of a Certificate of Expenditure for the Project. The Village shall respond to the Developer’s written 477 

request for a Certificate of Completion within thirty (30) days by issuing said Certificate or a 478 

written statement detailing the ways in which the Project does not conform to this Agreement or 479 

has not been satisfactorily completed, and the measures which must be taken by the Developer in 480 

order to obtain the Certificate of Completion.  The Developer may resubmit a written request for 481 

a Certificate of Completion upon accomplishment of such measures. 482 

3.8 Developer Indemnification. In the event a claim is made against the Developer, 483 

its directors, partners, affiliates, shareholders, officers, officials, agents and employees or any of 484 

them, or if the Developer, its directors, partners, affiliates, shareholders, officers, officials, agents 485 

Page | 258AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

22 

and employees or any of them (the “Developer Indemnified Party” or “Developer Indemnified 486 

Parties”), is made a party-defendant in any proceeding arising out of or in connection with the 487 

Village’s duties, obligations and responsibilities under the terms of this Agreement to the extent 488 

permitted by law, the Village shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Developer 489 

Indemnified Parties, or any Developer Indemnified Party, from all claims, liabilities, losses, taxes, 490 

judgments, costs, fines, fees, including expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection 491 

therewith.  Any such Developer Indemnified Party may obtain separate counsel to participate in 492 

the defense thereof at his or her own expense.  The Developer Indemnified Parties shall cooperate 493 

in the defense of such proceedings and be available for any litigation related appearances which 494 

may be required.  Further, the Village shall be entitled to settle any and all claims for money, in 495 

such amounts and upon such terms as to payment as it may deem appropriate, without the prior 496 

approval or consent of the Developer Indemnified Parties, or any of them, as the case may be, 497 

provided that neither the Developer nor any of the other Developer Indemnified Parties shall be 498 

required to contribute to such settlement. 499 

 500 

 501 

ARTICLE IV 502 
AUTHORITY 503 

4.1  Village Powers and Authority.  The Village hereby represents and warrants to 504 

the Developer that the Village has full constitutional and lawful right, power and authority, under 505 

currently applicable law, to execute and deliver and perform the terms and obligations of this 506 

Agreement, and the foregoing has been, or will be, duly and validly authorized and approved by 507 

all necessary Village proceedings, findings and actions.  Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes 508 

the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Village, and is enforceable in accordance with its 509 

Page | 259AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

23 

terms and provisions and the execution of this Agreement does not require the consent of any other 510 

governmental authority. 511 

4.2 Developer Powers and Authority.  The Developer hereby represents and warrants 512 

to the Village that the Developer has full lawful right, power and authority, under currently 513 

applicable law, to execute and deliver and perform the terms and obligations of this Agreement, 514 

and the foregoing has been or will be duly and validly authorized and approved by all necessary 515 

Developer actions.  Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation 516 

of the Developer, is enforceable in accordance with its terms and provisions and does not require 517 

the consent of any other party. 518 

4.3 Authorized Parties.  Except in cases where the approval or authorization of the 519 

Village’s Corporate Authorities is required by law, whenever, under the provisions of this 520 

Agreement, or other related documents and instruments or any duly authorized supplemental 521 

agreements, any request, demand, approval, notice or consent of the Village or the Developer is 522 

required, or the Village or the Developer is required to agree to, or to take some action at, the 523 

request of the other, such request, demand, approval, notice or consent, or agreement shall be given 524 

for the Village, unless otherwise provided herein, by the Village Manager or his designee and for 525 

the Developer by any officer of the Developer so authorized (and, in any event, the officers 526 

executing this Agreement are so authorized).  Any Party shall be authorized to act on any such 527 

request, demand, approval, notice or consent, or agreement or other action and neither Party hereto 528 

shall have any complaint against the other as a result of any such action taken. 529 

ARTICLE V 530 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 531 

5.1 Breach.  A Party shall be deemed to be in breach this Agreement if it fails to 532 

materially perform, observe or comply with any of its covenants, agreements or obligations 533 

Page | 260AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

24 

hereunder or breaches or violates any of its representations contained in this Agreement after the 534 

expiration of any cure period applicable thereto. 535 

5.2 Cure of Breach.  Except as otherwise provided herein, prior to the time that a 536 

failure of any Party to this Agreement to perform its obligations hereunder or the failure to perform 537 

any other action or omission to perform any such obligation or action described in Section 5.1 shall 538 

be deemed to be a breach hereof, the Party claiming such failure shall provide written notification 539 

to the Party alleged to have failed to perform of the alleged failure and shall demand performance.  540 

No breach of this Agreement may be found to have occurred if performance has commenced to 541 

the reasonable satisfaction of the complaining Party within sixty (60) days of the receipt of such 542 

notice; provided, however that if the Developer alleges that the Village has failed to pay 543 

Incremental Taxes as and when required, then the Village shall have thirty (30) days to cure such 544 

default.  The prosecution of the conduct necessary to remedy the alleged breach must be diligently 545 

pursued until the cure is perfected.  The obligation to cure defaults, as herein required, shall be 546 

tolled during any applicable time period during which a delay in performance is permitted as an 547 

event of one or more Force Majeure Delays under the provisions of Section 6.3 hereof but the 548 

tolling of the performance of any obligation shall be limited to the obligation or action as to which 549 

the Force Majeure Delay provisions apply. 550 

In the event that either Party shall breach any provision of this Agreement and fail to cure 551 

said breach as provided in the preceding paragraph or as elsewhere provided in this Agreement, 552 

the non-defaulting Party may enforce the terms hereof by filing any action or proceeding available 553 

at law or in equity, in any court of competent jurisdiction, including an action for specific 554 

performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, 555 

the Village remedy for monetary breaches shall be limited to its actual (but not consequential) 556 

Page | 261AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

25 

damages in an amount not to exceed its out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with this 557 

Agreement, including attorneys’ fees.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, no action taken by a 558 

Party pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5.2 or pursuant to the provisions of any other 559 

section of this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute an election of remedies and all remedies 560 

set forth in this Agreement shall be cumulative and nonexclusive of any other remedy either set 561 

forth herein or available to any Party at law or in equity.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the 562 

contrary, in the event that the Developer fails to complete the Project, the Village’s sole remedy 563 

shall be to withhold payment of Incremental Taxes.   564 

5.3 Default Shall Not Permit Termination of Agreement.  No default under this 565 

Agreement shall entitle any Party to terminate, cancel or otherwise rescind this Agreement; 566 

provided, however, this limitation shall not affect any other rights or remedies the Parties may 567 

have by reason of any default under this Agreement. 568 

5.4 Right to Enjoin.  In the event of any violation or threatened violation of any of 569 

the provisions of this Agreement by a Party, any other Party shall have the right to apply to a 570 

court of competent jurisdiction for an injunction against such violation or threatened violation, 571 

and/or for a decree of specific performance. 572 

 573 

ARTICLE VI 574 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 575 

6.1 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  The Parties will make 576 

every reasonable effort to expedite the subject matters hereof and acknowledge that the successful 577 

performance of this Agreement requires their continued cooperation. 578 

6.2 Mutual Assistance.  The Parties agree to take such actions, including the execution 579 

and delivery of such documents, instruments and certifications (and, in the case of the Village, the 580 

Page | 262AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

26 

adoption of such ordinances and resolutions), as may be necessary or appropriate from time to 581 

time to carry out the terms, provisions and intent of this Agreement and to aid and assist each other 582 

in carrying out such terms, provisions and intent.  The Village agrees that it shall not revoke or 583 

amend one or more of the TIF Ordinances if such revocation or amendment would prevent or 584 

impair the development of the Project in accordance with this Agreement or the Village’s 585 

performance of its obligations hereunder.  The Parties shall cooperate fully with each other in 586 

securing from any and all appropriate governmental authorities (whether federal, state, county or 587 

local) any and all necessary or required permits, entitlements, authorizations and approvals to 588 

develop and construct the Project. 589 

6.3 Force Majeure.  Neither the Village nor Developer nor any successor in interest 590 

to either of them shall be considered in breach of or in default of its obligations under this 591 

Agreement in the event of any delay caused by pandemic, epidemic, governmental restrictions, 592 

takings, and limitations arising subsequent, war, state or national emergency, government 593 

mandated closures, damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, strike, shortage of material, 594 

unusually adverse weather conditions such as, by way of illustration and not limitation, severe rain 595 

storms or below-freezing temperatures of abnormal degree or for an abnormal duration, tornadoes 596 

or cyclones, and other events or conditions beyond the reasonable control of the Party affected 597 

which in fact interferes with the ability of such Party to discharge its obligations hereunder (in 598 

each case, a “Force Majeure Delay”).  In each case where a Party hereto believes its performance 599 

of any specific obligation, duty or covenant is delayed or impaired by reason of an event of Force 600 

Majeure Delay, the Party claiming the benefit of this Section 6.3 shall notify the other Party of the 601 

nature of the event claimed to constitute Force Majeure Delay and, specifically, the obligation, 602 

duty or covenant which it believes is delayed or impaired by reason of the designated event.  603 

Page | 263AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

27 

Notification shall be provided in accordance with Section 6.8.  Performance of the obligation, duty 604 

or covenant impaired by reason of the designated event shall be tolled for that period of time 605 

reasonably necessary to remove or otherwise cure the impediment to performance and the Party 606 

relying on the event of Force Majeure Delay shall be obligated to pursue such remedy or cure with 607 

reasonable diligence given the nature of the impairment, to the extent the same may be reasonably 608 

cured.  In no case shall an event of Force Majeure Delay toll the performance of any obligation, 609 

duty or covenant not directly implicated in the claimed event of Force Majeure Delay.  Further, 610 

nothing herein shall be deemed to preclude the right of the Party entitled, by the terms of this 611 

Agreement, to receive the performance of any obligation, duty or covenant to challenge the validity 612 

of a claimed event of Force Majeure Delay. 613 

6.4 Amendment.  This Agreement, and any exhibits attached hereto, may be amended 614 

only by the mutual consent of the Parties evidenced by a written amendment, by the adoption of 615 

an ordinance or resolution of the Village approving said written amendment, as provided by law, 616 

and by the execution of said written amendment by the Parties or their successors in interest.  617 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an amendment to the Project Plans or planned unit development 618 

shall not require an amendment to this Agreement.  In addition, the Village Manager may effect 619 

Minor Modifications to this Agreement without the same being deemed an amendment to this 620 

Agreement which requires action by the Village President and the Board of Trustees.  For the 621 

purposes of this Agreement, the term “Minor Modification” means a modification or waiver of 622 

any requirement, specification, or other term set forth in this Agreement, consented to by the 623 

Parties in writing, whereby such modification or waiver does not materially affect the goals, 624 

purposes, or nature of the Agreement. 625 

Page | 264AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

28 

6.5 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth all agreements, understandings and 626 

covenants between and among the Parties relative to the matters herein contained.  This Agreement 627 

supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and understandings, written and oral, and shall be 628 

deemed a full integration of the entire agreement of the Parties. 629 

6.6 Severability.  If any provisions, covenants, agreement or portion of this 630 

Agreement, or its application to any person, entity or property, is held invalid, such invalidity shall 631 

not affect the application or validity of any other provisions, covenants or portions of this 632 

Agreement and, to that end, all provisions, covenants, agreements or portions of this Agreement 633 

are declared to be severable.   634 

6.7 Consent or Approval.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this 635 

Agreement, whenever consent or approval written or otherwise of any Party to this Agreement is 636 

required, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. 637 

6.8 Illinois Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 638 

State of Illinois. 639 

6.9 Notice.  Any notice, request, consent, approval or demand (each, a “Notice”) given 640 

or made under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given in the following manner: (A) 641 

by personal delivery of such Notice; or (B) by mailing of such Notice by certified mail, return 642 

receipt requested; (C) by sending e-mail transmission of such Notice with confirmation of receipt; 643 

or (D) by commercial overnight delivery of such Notice.  All Notices shall be delivered to the 644 

addresses set forth in this Section 6.8.  Notice served by certified mail shall be effective on the 645 

fifth Business Day (as defined below) after the date of mailing.  Notice served by e-mail 646 

transmission shall be effective as of date and time of e-mail transmission, provided that the Notice 647 

transmitted shall be sent on a Business Day during business hours.  In the event e-mail Notice is 648 

Page | 265AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

29 

transmitted on a non-Business Day or during non-business hours, the effective date and time of 649 

Notice is the first business hour of the next Business Day after transmission.  Notice served by 650 

commercial overnight delivery shall be effective on the next Business Day following deposit with 651 

the overnight delivery company.  For purposes hereof, the first “business hour” of a Business Day 652 

shall be 8:00 a.m. Central time and the last “business hour” shall be 6:00 p.m. Central time.  The 653 

term “Business Day” shall be Monday through Friday, excluding federal and State of Illinois 654 

holidays.  655 

If to the Village: 656 

Village of Tinley Park 657 
Attn: Village Manager 658 
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 659 
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 660 
dniemeyer@tinleypark.org 661 

with a copy to: 662 

Peterson, Johnson & Murray Chicago, LLC 663 
Attn: Kevin Kearney 664 
200 West Adams Street, Suite 2125 665 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 666 
kkearney@pjmchicago.com 667 

If to the Developer: 668 

Brixmor Property Group 669 
Attn: Andy Balzer 670 
8700 West Bryn Mawr Avenue; Suite 1000-S 671 
Chicago, Illinois 60631 672 
Andrew.Balzer@brixmor.com 673 

With a copy to: 674 

Brixmor Property Group 675 
Attn:  General Counsel 676 
450 Lexington Avenue, 13th Floor 677 
New York, New York 10017  678 
Steven.Siegel@brixmor.com 679 

with a copy to:  680 

Page | 266AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

30 

Dykema Gossett, PLLC 681 
Attn:  Andrew P. Scott, Esq. 682 
10 South Wacker Drive, Suite 2300 683 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 684 
apscott@dykema.com 685 

6.10 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of 686 

which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same agreement. 687 

6.11 Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective 688 

Date and continue until the earlier of: (A) the Developer’s receipt of the Maximum Reimbursement 689 

Amount or (B) the last day of the Available Incremental Tax Term or Available Incremental Sales 690 

Tax Term, whichever is later; provided, however, the Village’s obligation to make a final 691 

reimbursement payment of Incremental Sales Taxes and/or Available Incremental Taxes under 692 

either Available Incremental Tax Term and/or Available Incremental Sales Tax Term shall survive 693 

the term of the Agreement and the Developer’s rights and remedies to enforce such obligation shall 694 

survive the term of the Agreement. 695 

6.12 Good Faith and Fair Dealing.  Village and Developer acknowledge their duty to 696 

exercise their rights and remedies hereunder and to perform their covenants, agreements and 697 

obligations hereunder, reasonably and in good faith. 698 

6.13 Drafting.  Each Party and its counsel have participated in the drafting of this 699 

Agreement therefore none of the language contained in this Agreement shall be presumptively 700 

construed in favor of or against either Party. 701 

6.14 Recording.  The Developer shall be permitted to record, at its costs and expense, a 702 

memorandum of this Agreement with the Cook County Recorder of Deeds. 703 

6.15 Covenants Run with the Land/Successors and Assigns.  It is intended that the 704 

covenants, conditions, agreements, promises, obligations and duties of each Party as set forth in 705 

this Agreement shall be construed as covenants and that, to the fullest extent legally possible, all 706 

Page | 267AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

31 

such covenants shall run with and be enforceable against both the covenanted and the Property.  707 

Such covenants shall terminate upon termination or expiration of this Agreement.  On or before 708 

the last date of payment of Incremental Taxes, the Village shall provide a release to confirm 709 

termination of this Agreement which Developer may, at its sole cost and expense, record against 710 

the Property.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon each 711 

Developer and each Developer’s respective successors, grantees and permitted assigns, and upon 712 

successor corporate authorities of the Village and successor municipalities. 713 

6.16 Assignment.  Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Completion, Developer may 714 

not assign this Agreement, or any rights of obligations hereunder, to any party, except to an 715 

affiliate or party providing financing for the Project, without the prior express written consent 716 

of the Village.  After to issuance of the Certificate of Completion, the Developer may assign 717 

this Agreement, or any rights of obligations hereunder, provided that the Developer delivers at 718 

least ten (10) days notice prior to such assignment taking effect. 719 

6.17 Partial Funding.  Except as otherwise set for in this Agreement, the Developer 720 

acknowledges and agrees that the economic assistance to be received by the Developer as set forth 721 

in this Agreement is intended to be and shall be a source of partial funding for the Project and 722 

agrees that any additional funding above and beyond said economic assistance shall be solely the 723 

responsibility of the Developer.  The Developer acknowledges and agrees that the amount of 724 

economic assistance set forth in this Agreement represents the maximum amount of economic 725 

assistance to be received by the Developer, provided the Developer complies with the terms and 726 

provisions set forth in this Agreement.  The Developer further acknowledges and agrees that the 727 

Village is not a joint developer or joint venturer with the Developer and the Village is in no way 728 

responsible for completion of any portion of the Project. 729 

Page | 268AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

32 

6.18 Attorney Fees.  Should it become necessary to bring legal action or proceedings to 730 

enforce this Agreement, or any portion thereof, or to declare the effect of the provisions of this 731 

Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover or offset against sums due, its costs, 732 

including reasonable attorneys’ and consultants’ fees, in addition to whatever other relief the 733 

prevailing party may be entitled. 734 

6.19 Estoppel Certificates.  Each of the Parties hereto agrees to provide the other, upon 735 

not less than ten (10) business days prior request, a certificate certifying that this Agreement is in 736 

full force and effect (unless such is not the case, in which such Party shall specify the basis for 737 

such claim), that the requesting Party is not in default of any term, provision or condition of this 738 

Agreement beyond any applicable notice and cure provision (or specifying each such claimed 739 

default) and certifying such other matters reasonably requested by the requesting Party.  If either 740 

Party fails to comply with this provision within the time limit specified, it shall be deemed to have 741 

appointed the other as its attorney-in-fact for execution of same on its behalf as to the specific 742 

request only. 743 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 744 

  745 

Page | 269AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

33 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement pursuant to all 746 

requisite authorizations as of the date first above written. 747 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 748 
an Illinois Municipal Corporation 749 

By:_________________________________ 750 
Village President 751 

 752 

ATTEST: 753 

____________________________ 754 
Village Clerk 755 

  756 

Page | 270AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

34 

 

BRIXMOR/IA TINLEY PARK PLAZA, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By: Brixmor/IA JV Pool B, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
its sole member 

By: Brixmor/IA JV, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
its sole member 

By: Brixmor IA JV Manager, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
its sole member 

By:   
Name: ______________________________ 
Its: ____________________________, 

____________________________ 

  757 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 758 

)  SS 759 
COUNTY OF COOK  ) 760 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO 761 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named _________________________ is personally known to 762 

me to be the _______________________ of _______________________, and also personally 763 

known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such 764 

_______________________ and respectively, and that he appeared before me this day in person 765 

and severally acknowledged that, as such _______________________, he signed and delivered 766 

the said instrument, pursuant to authority given by the limited partnership as his free and voluntary 767 

act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said _______________________ of said limited 768 

partnership, for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 769 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal, this _________ day of September, 2020. 770 

Page | 271AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

35 

Commission expires ________________ ______________________ 771 
Notary Public 772 

 773 
 774 
  775 

Page | 272AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description and Map of Redevelopment Project Area 

  

Page | 273AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-2 

Legal Description of Redevelopment Project Area 

THOSE PARTS OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12, SECTION 18, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13, SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13, ALL 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS MORE 
PARTICULARLY BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN SUPER-K SUBDIVISION AS 
PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MARCH 20, 1991 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 97195157; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN SAID SUPER-K 
SUBDIVISION AND THE WEST LINE OF LOT 2 IN SAID SUPER-K SUBDIVISION, TO 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN SAID SUPER-K 
SUBDIVISION, TO A WEST LINE OF LOT 3 IN SAID SUPER-K SUBDIVISION; 

THENCE NORTHERLY, NORTHWESTERLY AND NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST 
LINES OF LOT 3 IN SAID SUPER-K SUBDIVISION, TO THE WESTERN MOST 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3, ALSO BEING THE WESTERN MOST 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN PARK PLACE SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED DECEMBER 7, 1992 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 92914537; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN SAID PARK PLACE 
SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 IN SAID PARK PLACE SUBDIVISION 
AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, 
RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO 
THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF OLCOTT 
AVENUE DEDICATED AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 28, 1973 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 22379900; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, TO THE EAST LINE OF OLCOTT 
AVENUE DEDICATED AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 28, 1973 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER; 

Page | 274AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-3 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID EAST LINE, AND THE NORTHERLY 
PROLONGATION THEREOF TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS;  

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 36 
NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 18, ALSO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 19, BOTH IN TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

 THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 18, ALSO THE NORTH 
LINE OF SECTION 19, BOTH IN TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 
HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 
13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE NORTH LINE 
OF THE SOUTH 600 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 600 FEET OF THE 
EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, 
RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 
NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS, ALSO THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 247 FEET 
OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 247 FEET OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF 

Page | 275AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-4 

THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE EAST LINE OF 
THE WEST 50 FEET OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 
NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 50 FEET OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO A POINT 15 FEET 
NORTH OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF 159TH STREET AS INDICATED IN SPECIAL 
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2011 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
1127141045; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTH RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF 159TH STREET AND THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 65 FEET OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS INDICATED IN SPECIAL 
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2011 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
1127141045; 
 
THENCE EASTERLY, SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY ALONG THE RIGHT OF WAY OF 
159TH STREET, TO THE NORTHERLY PROLONGATION OF THE EAST LINE OF THE 
WEST 300 FEET OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 300 FEET OF THE WEST 
HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE SOUTH 
LINE OF THE NORTH 300 FEET OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 300 FEET OF THE WEST 
HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE WEST 
LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 
NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS, ALSO THE EAST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, ALSO THE EAST LINE OF THE 

Page | 276AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-5 

EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, 
RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO 
THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING 
PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 
36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 159TH STREET AS 
DEDICATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED JULY 8, 1932 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 11113021 AND RATIFICATION THEREOF FILE APRIL 8, 1971 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER LR2551034, A DISTANCE OF 183.00 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE WEST 180.00 FEET ALONG LAST SAID SOUTH LINE; 
THENCE SOUTH 5.00 FEET; THENCE WEST 200.00 FEET ALONG A LINE 5.00 FEET SOUTH 
OF AND PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 159TH STREET; THENCE NORTH 5.00 
FEET; THENCE WEST 307.62 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 159TH STREET; 
THENCE SOUTH 1050.00 FEET ON A LINE NORMAL TO SAID SOUTH LINE OF 159TH 
STREET; THENCE EAST 845.55 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF OAK PARK 
AVENUE (WHICH IS 33.00 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION); THENCE NORTH ALONG LAST SAID WEST LINE 355.45 
FEET TO A POINT 694.55 FEET SOUTH FROM THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 159TH 
STREET; THENCE WEST 17.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 555.63 FEET; THENCE WEST 133.00 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 139.68 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 159TH STREET AND THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
AND THE SOUTH LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING ON THE SOUTH 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 159TH STREET AS DEDICATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION 
RECORDED JULY 8, 1932 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 11113021 AND RATIFICATION 
THEREOF FILE APRIL 8, 1971 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER LR2551034, A 

DISTANCE OF 183.00 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE WEST 180.00 FEET ALONG LAST SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 5.00 FEET; 
THENCE WEST 200.00 FEET ALONG A LINE 5.00 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL TO 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 159TH STREET; THENCE NORTH 5.00 FEET; THENCE WEST 
307.62 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 159TH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 1050.00 
FEET ON A LINE NORMAL TO SAID SOUTH LINE OF 159TH STREET; THENCE EAST 
845.55 FEET TO THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF OAK PARK AVENUE (WHICH IS 33.00 
FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION); 
THENCE NORTH ALONG LAST SAID WEST LINE 355.45 FEET TO A POINT 694.55 FEET 
SOUTH FROM THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 159TH STREET; THENCE WEST 17.00 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 555.63 FEET; THENCE WEST 133.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 139.68 
FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 159TH STREET AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING, TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF AND ALSO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL OF 

Page | 277AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-6 

LAND BEING PART OF THE WEST HALF AND THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTH RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF 159TH STREET AS DEDICATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED 
JULY 8, 1932 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 11113021 AND RATIFICATION THEREOF FILED 
APRIL 8, 1971 AS DOCUMENT LR 2551034 AND THE LINE BETWEEN THE EAST HALF 
AND THE WEST HALF OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE WEST 117.55 FEET 
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 1094 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 1050 FEET ON LAST SAID LINE; THENCE 
EAST 451.56 FEET ON A LINE 1050 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL TO SAID SOUTH 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE NORTH 1050 FEET TO SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
A DISTANCE OF 339.11 FEET EAST OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE WEST 339.11 
FEET ON LAST SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING WESTERLY ON THE SOUTH LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING 
PART OF THE WEST HALF AND THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF 159TH STREET AS DEDICATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED JULY 8, 1932 
AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 11113021 AND RATIFICATION THEREOF FILED APRIL 8, 1971 
AS DOCUMENT LR 2551034 AND THE LINE BETWEEN THE EAST HALF AND THE WEST 
HALF OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE WEST 117.55 FEET ALONG SAID 
SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 1094 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST 
QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 1050 FEET ON LAST SAID LINE; THENCE EAST 451.56 FEET 
ON A LINE 1050 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL TO SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE; 
THENCE NORTH 1050 FEET TO SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 339.11 
FEET EAST OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE WEST 339.11 FEET ON LAST SAID 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, TO THE WESTERN MOST 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF OUTLOT C IN DUN RAVEN PLACE PHASE II AS PER PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 28, 2001 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 0010908493; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY TO A POINT OF TANGENCY IN THE NORTH LINE OF 
OUTLOT D IN DUNRAVEN PLACE AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 30, 
1999 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 99827216 BEING THE WESTERLY TERMINUS OF AN 
ARC HAVING A RADIUS OF 192.00 FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 300.13 FEET; 

THENCE WESTERLY AND SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LIMITS OF 
OUTLOT D IN DUNRAVEN PLACE AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 30, 1999 
AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 99827216, TO THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH 
LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF LOT 3 LYING 
NORTH OF A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 3 THROUGH 
A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 3 WHICH POINT IS 352.19 FEET SOUTH OF THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3 AS MEASURED ALONG SAID WEST LINE ALL IN 

Page | 278AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-7 

CENTENNIAL OFFICE PARK AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 5, 1988 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 88458264; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
AND THE SOUTH LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART 
OF LOT 3 LYING NORTH OF A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID LOT 3 THROUGH A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 3 WHICH POINT IS 
352.19 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3 AS MEASURED 
ALONG SAID WEST LINE ALL IN CENTENNIAL OFFICE PARK AS PER PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED OCTOBER 5, 1988 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 88458264, TO THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID LOT 3, ALSO THE EAST LINE OF LOT 1 IN TINLEY PARK PLAZA 
SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 7, 2004 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 0409818067; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 1 IN TINLEY PARK PLAZA 
SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 7, 2004 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER 0409818067, ALSO THE WEST LINE OF CENTENNIAL SUBDIVISION UNIT 
NO. 1 AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2, 1984 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
27155558, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF CENTENNIAL SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 1 AS PER 
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2, 1984 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 27155558; 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF CENTENNIAL SUBDIVISION 
UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2, 1984 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
27155558, TO THE WESTERLY LINE OF CENTENNIAL DRIVE AS DEDICATED BY 
INSTRUMENT RECORDED JULY 9, 1980 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 25509385; 

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY 
PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF CENTENNIAL SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 1 AS 
PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2, 1984 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 27155558, TO 
THE WEST LINE OF PARCEL 4 IN FINAL PLAT OF MEADOW MEWS PHASE ONE PUD 
AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 19, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 93378525 
(RECORDING INFORMATION BASED UPON 2019 TAX MAP FOR COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF COOK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE DUE TO 
COVID-19 PANDEMIC); 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ON THE WEST LINE OF PARCEL 4 IN FINAL PLAT OF MEADOW 
MEWS PHASE ONE PUD AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 19, 1993 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 93378525 (RECORDING INFORMATION BASED UPON 2019 TAX 
MAP FOR COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF COOK COUNTY 
RECORDER'S OFFICE DUE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC), TO THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF 
PARCEL 4 IN FINAL PLAT OF MEADOW MEWS PHASE ONE PUD AS PER PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED MAY 19, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 93378525 (RECORDING 
INFORMATION BASED UPON 2019 TAX MAP FOR COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Page | 279AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-8 

BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF COOK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE DUE TO COVID-19 
PANDEMIC); 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF PARCEL 4 IN FINAL 
PLAT OF MEADOW MEWS PHASE ONE PUD AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 
19, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 93378525 (RECORDING INFORMATION BASED 
UPON 2019 TAX MAP FOR COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF COOK 
COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE DUE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC) AND THE SOUTHEAST 
LINE OF PARCEL 14 IN FINAL PLAT OF MEADOW MEWS PHASE TWO PUD AS PER 
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 19, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 93378524 
(RECORDING INFORMATION BASED UPON 2019 TAX MAP FOR COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF COOK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE DUE TO 
COVID-19 PANDEMIC), TO THE 

SOUTHWEST LINE OF PARCEL 14 IN FINAL PLAT OF MEADOW MEWS PHASE TWO 
PUD AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 19, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
93378524 (RECORDING INFORMATION BASED UPON 2019 TAX MAP FOR COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF COOK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE 
DUE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC); 

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF PARCEL 14 IN FINAL 
PLAT OF MEADOW MEWS PHASE TWO PUD AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED MAY 
19, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 93378524 (RECORDING INFORMATION BASED 
UPON 2019 TAX MAP FOR COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS BECAUSE OF CLOSURE OF 
COOK COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE DUE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC), TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 19, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19; THENCE NORTH 89 
DEGREES 43 MINUTES WEST (BEARINGS ASSUMED FOR PURPOSES OF THIS PARCEL 
ONLY) 585 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER TO A 
POINT OF CURVE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ON A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE 
NORTHWEST HAVING A RADIUS OF 258.72 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 101.52 FEET 
AND A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 79 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST; 
THENCE NORTH 68 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST 79.57 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 00 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST 533 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 
DEGREES 43 MINUTES EAST 755.40 FEET, TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF 
OF SECTION 19; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST 542.27 
FEET ALONG SAID LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING PART OF 
THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 

Page | 280AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-9 

SECTION 19; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES WEST (BEARINGS ASSUMED 
FOR PURPOSES OF THIS PARCEL ONLY) 585 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
NORTHWEST QUARTER TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ON A 
CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST HAVING A RADIUS OF 258.72 FEET, AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 101.52 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 79 DEGREES 02 
MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST; THENCE NORTH 68 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 11 SECONDS 
WEST 79.57 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST 533 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES EAST 755.40 FEET, TO THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID WEST HALF OF SECTION 19; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 54 
SECONDS EAST 542.27 FEET ALONG SAID LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, TO THE 
EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 19, 
TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE NORTH LINE OF 
LOT 1 IN WARTHEN'S RESUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
SEPTEMBER 4, 1975 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 23210202; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1, THE WESTERLY 
PROLONGATION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 ALL 
IN WARTHEN'S RESUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 4, 
1975 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 23210202, TO THE SOUTH LINE OF BREMEN TOWNE 
DRIVE AS HERETOFORE DEDICATED IN BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1968 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 AND 
FILED AS LR2419778 

 
THENCE WESTERLY, SOUTHWESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY ALONG THE SOUTH 
LINE, SOUTHEAST LINE AND EAST LINE OF BREMEN TOWN DRIVE AS HERETOFORE 
DEDICATED IN BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
NOVEMBER 4, 1968 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 AND FILED AS LR2419778, TO 
THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF BREMEN TOWNE DRIVE AS HERETOFORE DEDICATED IN 
BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1968 
AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 AND FILED AS LR2419778; 

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF BREMEN TOWNE 
DRIVE AS HERETOFORE DEDICATED IN BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1968 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 AND 
FILED AS LR2419778, TO THE WEST LINE OF BREMEN TOWNE DRIVE AS 
HERETOFORE DEDICATED IN BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1968 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 AND FILED AS 
LR2419778; 

Page | 281AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-10 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF BREMEN TOWNE DRIVE AS 
HERETOFORE DEDICATED IN BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1968 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 AND FILED AS 
LR2419778 TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 16 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS PER 
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T3056252; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 16 AND THE NORTH LINE OF 
LOT 15 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T3056252, TO THE SOUTHERLY 
PROLONGATION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 17 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION 
AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
T3056252; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY PROLONGATION OF THE EAST LINE 
OF LOT 17, AND THE EAST LINE OF LOT 17 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS 
PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
T3056252, TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 18 IN BREMEN WOODE 
SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER T3056252; 

THENCE NORTHERLY, WESTERLY, NORTHERLY, EASTERLY AND NORTHERLY 
ALONG THE EASTERN LIMITS OF LOT 18 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS PER 
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T3056252, 
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 18 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS PER 
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T3056252; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 18, THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 
19, THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 20, THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 21 AND THE NORTH LINE 
OF LOT 26 ALL IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T3056252, TO THE EAST 
LINE OF LOT 27 IN BREMEN WOODE SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER T3056252; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 27 IN BREMEN WOODE 
SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER T3056252, TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 27 IN BREMEN WOODE 
SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER T3056252; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH OF LOT 27 IN BREMEN WOODE 
SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 30, 1978 AS DOCUMENT 
NUMBER T3056252, TO THE WEST LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING PART OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE 

Page | 282AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-11 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 19; THENCE 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES EAST (BEARINGS ASSUMED FOR PURPOSES OF THIS 
PARCEL ONLY) 908 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 
MINUTES EAST 258.81 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 657.03 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST 244.05 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 116.32 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 15 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 542 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF PARCEL OF LAND BEING PART OF 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 19; 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES EAST (BEARINGS ASSUMED FOR 
PURPOSES OF THIS PARCEL ONLY) 908 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING 
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 43 MINUTES EAST 258.81 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH LINE; 
THENCE SOUTH 657.03 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 58 SECONDS 
WEST 244.05 FEET; THENCE NORTH 116.32 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 58 
MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 15 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 30 
SECONDS EAST 542 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 
NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TO THE SOUTH LINE 
OF 163RD STREET AS DEDICATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED APRIL 15, 
1976 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 23453671 AND T2864222; 

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY AND WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF 163RD 
STREET AS DEDICATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED APRIL 15, 1976 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 23453671 AND T2864222, TO THE EAST LINE OF HARLEM 
AVENUE EXISTING AS OF MAY 25, 2020; 

THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF HARLEM AVENUE EXISTING AS 
OF MAY 25, 2020, TO THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 1 IN SUPER-K SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
MARCH 20, 1991 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 97195157; 

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION OF THE SOUTH LINE 
OF LOT 1 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 1 IN SUPER-K SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT 

Page | 283AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-12 

THEREOF RECORDED MARCH 20, 1991 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 97195157, TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

EXCEPTING FROM THE ABOVE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCELS OF LAND: 

LOT 83 THROUGH LOT 89 (BOTH INCLUSIVE) IN BREMEN TOWNE UNIT NO. 1 AS PER 
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1968 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20666550 
AND T2419778. 

ALSO, 

LOT 1 THROUGH LOT 12 (BOTH INCLUSIVE) IN BREMENTOWNE PARK TOWNHOUSE 
RESUBDIVISION PHASE I AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED DECEMBER 21, 1990 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 90619247. 

ALSO, 
LOT 1 THROUGH LOT 5 (BOTH INCLUSIVE) IN BREMENTOWNE PARK TOWNHOUSE 
RESUBDIVISION PHASE II AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 28, 1993 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 93870509. 
 
The Redevelopment Project Area is generally bounded by: 
 

North – 159th Street (except for a few parcels west of Oak Park Avenue that are north of 
159th Street) 
 
South – the northern boundary of Siemsen Meadows (165th Street, extended) 
 
East – Oak Park Avenue 
 
West – Olcott Avenue 

 
all in Tinley Park, Bremen and Orland Townships, Cook County, Illinois 
 
 
  

Page | 284AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

A-13 

 
 

Map of Redevelopment Project Area 

[Attached] 

 

Page | 285AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

Legal Description and Map of Property 

  

Page | 286AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

B-2 

Legal Description of Property 

PARCEL 1: 

LOTS 1 AND 2 IN THE PLAT OF TINLEY PARK PLAZA SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 7, 2004 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 0409818067, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 
19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN 
THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

ALSO DESCRIBED AS: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 
13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 19; THENCE SOUTH 
00 DEGREES, 00 MINUTES, 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SECTION 
19, 304.50 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 11 SECONDS EAST, 70.00 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 11 
SECONDS EAST, 359.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS 
EAST, 551.85 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, 
154.13 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 1,478.13 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 513.13 FEET TO 
A POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF HARLEM AVENUE, SAID POINT BEING 
70.00 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 19; 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 2,027.69 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL 2: 

TOGETHER WITH RIGHTS CONTAINED IN AN EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR INGRESS 
AND EGRESS FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1, AS CREATED BY THE ACCESS 
EASEMENT AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 20, 1995 AND RECORDED OCTOBER 3, 
1995 AS DOCUMENT 95669296, BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, A 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION AND THE MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF 
NEW YORK, A NEW YORK CORPORATION, OVER THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
PROPERTY, TO WIT: 

THAT PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 
36 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, TAKEN AS A 
TRACT, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 1 IN CENTENNIAL 
SUBDIVISION UNIT 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2, 1984 
AS DOCUMENT 27155558; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES, 00 MINUTES, 00 SECONDS 
WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, EXTENDED SOUTH 80.56 FEET TO THE 

Page | 287AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

B-3 

POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A TANGENTIAL CURVE 
CONCAVE TO THE NORTHEAST, RADIUS 32.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 79 DEGREES, 
32 MINUTES, 42 SECONDS, 44.43 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 79 DEGREES, 32 MINUTES, 
42 SECONDS EAST ALONG A TANGENT 65.00 FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 
ALONG A TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST RADIUS 24.00 
FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 26 DEGREES, 21 MINUTES, 27 SECONDS, 11.04 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CENTENNIAL DRIVE, AS 
HERETOFORE DEDICATED BY DOCUMENT 25509385 RECORDED JULY 9, 1980; 
THENCE SOUTH 11 DEGREES, 18 MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, 31.79 FEET TO A 
POINT ON A 24.00 FOOT RADIUS, THE CENTER OF CIRCLE OF SAID CURVE BEARS 
SOUTH 34 DEGREES, 51 MINUTES, 51 SECONDS WEST FROM SAID POINT; THENCE 
WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE 10.12 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 24 DEGREES, 10 
MINUTES, 05 SECONDS; THENCE NORTH 79 DEGREES, 18 MINUTES, 14 SECONDS 
WEST ALONG TANGENT, 34.70 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A 
TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST, RADIUS 37.00 FEET, 
CENTRAL ANGLE 102 DEGREES, 00 MINUTES, 19 SECONDS, 65.87 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 01 DEGREES, 18 MINUTES, 33 SECONDS EAST ALONG TANGENT 24.82 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE TO THE 
NORTHWEST, RADIUS 39.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 39 DEGREES, 04 MINUTES, 44 
SECONDS, 26.60 FEET TO A POINT ON AFORESAID WESTERLY LINE EXTENDED 
SOUTH OF LOT 1 IN CENTENNIAL SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES, 00 
MINUTES, 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE EXTENDED 150.38 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PIN(S):    28-19-100-057; 28-19-100-058 
 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS:  Tinley Park Plaza Shopping Center 

15903-16205 Harlem Avenue 
Tinley Park, Illinois 

 
 
 

Page | 288AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

B-4 

Map of Property 

[Attached] 

Page | 289AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

Project Plans 

[Attached] 
 

Page | 290AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

D-1 

EXHIBIT D 
Project Budget 

 
Soft Costs  Amount 
  
Impact Fees $60,000.00 
Other Permits & Fees $15,000.00 
Entitlement Costs $50,000.00 
Architects & Engineering $415,500.00 
Civil Engineering $88,500.00 
Environmental Consultant $10,000.00 
Soils/Geotechnical $20,000.00 
Legal $220,000.00 
Third Party Inspections/Reports $25,000.00 
Other Consultants $75,000.00 
  
Hard Costs  Amount 
  
Site Work $1,466,997.59 
Sidewalk / ADA upgrade $358,309.80 
Landscaping $150,000.00 
Pylons $200,000.00 
Lighting Retrofit $130,000.00 
Stormwater Management Site Costs $300,000.00 
Building Demolition $300,150.00 
Shell Construction (Grocer) $4,310,597.40 
Shell Construction (Retailer) $2,750,000.00 
Shell Construction (Space 18) $742,356.02 
Façade / Non Anchor $1,500,000.00 
Roofing $100,000.00 
Contingency (Soft, Hard and Maintenance Costs) $1,811,104.84 
Environmental / Asbestos $348,000.00 
Parking Improvements $977,768.94 
  
Tenant Specific Costs ( Landlord Work, TI and Commissions) $3,597,868.66 
  
Tenant Relocation and Buy Out Costs $1,884,072.83 
  
TOTAL $21,906,226.08 

 
  

Page | 291AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

E-1 

EXHIBIT E 

Form of Disclosure Affidavit 

State of Illinois  ) 
) ss 

County of ________ ) 

I, ______________________________, reside at _____________________________ in the 
City/Village of ________________________, County of _______________________, State of 
Illinois, being first duly sworn and having personal knowledge of the below facts, swear to the 
following: 

That I am over the age of eighteen and serve as the _____________ of ______________ (the 
“Developer”). 

That the property in question has a common street address referred to as:  
____________________________________________, in the Village of Tinley Park, County of Cook, 
State of Illinois, and with a Property Index Number(s) of ________________________ (hereinafter 
“Redevelopment Property”). 

That I understand that pursuant to Illinois law, prior to execution of the redevelopment agreement 
between the Developer and the Village, Illinois law requires the owner, authorized trustee, corporate 
official or managing member or agent to submit a sworn affidavit to the Village disclosing the identity 
of every owner and beneficiary who will obtain any interest, real or personal, in the Property and/or 
Project, and every shareholder who will be entitled to receive more than 7.5% of the total distributable 
income of any corporation having any interest, real or personal, in the Redevelopment Property and/or 
project after this transaction is consummated. 

As the owner, authorized trustee, corporate official or managing member or agent, I declare under oath 
that (choose one): 
(a) The owners or beneficiaries of the trust are _________________________________; or 

(b) The shareholders with more than 7.5% interest are ___________________________; or 

(c) The members with more than 7.5% interest in the limited liability company are _____, or 

(d) The corporation is publicly traded and there is no readily known individual having greater than 
a 7.5% interest in the corporation. 

This instrument is made to induce the Village to enter into the redevelopment agreement and in 
accordance with the Illinois law. 

Affiant:___________________________________ 
Subscribed and Sworn to before me this ______ day of September, 2020. 

________________________ 
Notary Public 

 

Page | 292AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

F-1 

EXHIBIT F 
Redevelopment Project Costs 

Soft Costs  Amount 
  
Pro-rated Soft Costs1 $389,645.25 
  
SOFT COST TOTAL $389,645.25 
  
  
Hard Costs  Amount 
  
Site Work $1,466,997.59 
Sidewalk / ADA upgrade $358,309.80 
Landscaping $150,000.00 
Pylons $200,000.00 
Lighting Retrofit $130,000.00 
Stormwater Management Site Costs $300,000.00 
Building Demolition $300,150.00 
Façade / Non Anchor $1,500,000.00 
Roofing $100,000.00 
Environmental / Asbestos $348,000.00 
Parking Improvements $977,768.94 
  
Tenant Specific Costs (Landlord Work and TI) $1,129,126.75 
  
Tenant Relocation and Buy Out Costs $750,000 
  
HARD COST TOTAL $7,710,354.752 
  
TOTAL $8,100,000.00 

 
 

                                                 
1 Soft costs which are eligible Redevelopment Project Costs have been estimated based on the ratio of Redevelopment 
Project Costs hard costs divided by total Project hard costs.   
2 The Developer has estimated $1,811,104.84 in hard and soft contingency costs.  All contingency costs expended in 
furtherance of Redevelopment Project Costs shall be reimbursable subject to the Maximum Reimbursement Amount.  

Page | 293AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

G-1 

EXHIBIT G 

Form of Certificate of Expenditure 

Date: ____________, 2021 

To: Village of Tinley Park, (the “Village”) 

Re: Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza, LLC (“Developer”) $_______________ Incremental Tax 
Reimbursement 

This Certificate of Expenditure is provided pursuant to the Village of Tinley Park Tax Increment 
Financing Redevelopment Agreement (Tinley Park Plaza Phase I) by and between Developer and 
the Village, dated _____________, 2020, as authorized pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-R-____ 
(the “Redevelopment Agreement”). All terms used herein shall have the same meaning as when 
used in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

Developer hereby certifies that, as of the date hereof, $____________________ has been advanced 
by Developer in connection with the Project.  Such amount has been properly incurred, is a proper 
charge made or to be made in connection with the Project costs, including Redevelopment Project 
Costs.  Total Project costs are  $___________________ and Redevelopment Project Costs are $ 
______________________. Documents substantiating these expenditures and their payment are 
attached hereto.    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this certification to be signed on its behalf as of 
the date shown above. 

Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza, LLC 

By:    
Name:    
Title:    

 

097205.000009  4821-8878-9953.5  

Page | 294AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 295AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 296AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 297AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 298AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 299AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 300AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 301AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 302AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 303AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 304AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 305AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 306AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 307AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 308AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 309AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 310AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 311AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 312AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 313AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 314AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 315AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 316AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 317AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 318AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 319AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 320AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 321AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 322AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 323AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 324AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 325AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 326AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 327AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 328AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 329AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 330AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 331AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 332AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 333AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 334AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 335AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 336AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 337AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 338AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 339AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 340AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 341AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 342AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 343AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 344AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 345AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 346AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 347AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 348AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 349AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 350AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 351AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 352AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 353AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 354AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 355AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 356AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 357AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 358AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 359AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 360AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 361AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 362AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 363AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 364AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 365AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 366AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 367AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 368AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 369AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 370AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 371AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 372AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 373AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 374AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 375AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 376AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 377AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 378AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 379AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 380AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 381AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 382AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 383AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 384AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 385AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 386AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 387AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 388AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 389AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 390AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 391AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 392AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 393AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 394AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 395AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 396AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 397AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 398AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 399AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 400AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 401AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 402AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 403AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 404AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 405AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 406AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 407AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 408AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 409AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 410AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 411AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 412AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 413AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 414AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 415AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 416AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 417AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 418AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 419AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 420AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 421AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 422AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 423AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 424AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 425AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 426AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 427AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 428AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 429AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 430AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 431AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 432AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 433AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 434AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 435AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 436AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 437AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 438AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 439AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 440AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 441AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 442AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 443AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 444AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 445AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 446AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 447AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 448AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 449AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 450AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 451AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 452AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 453AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 454AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 455AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 456AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 457AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 458AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 459AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 460AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 461AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 462AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 463AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 464AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 465AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 466AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 467AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 468AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 469AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 470AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 471AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 472AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 473AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 474AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 475AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 476AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 477AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 478AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 479AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 480AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 481AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 482AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 483AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 484AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 485AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 486AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 487AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 488AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 489AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 490AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 491AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 492AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 493AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 494AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 495AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 496AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Date: August 28, 2020

To: John Urbanski, Public Works Director

From: Joe Fitzpatrick, Water Superintendent

Subject: Water Assessment Program Contract Renewal
__________________________________________________________________________________________

_________
Presented for September 1, 2020 Village Board discussion and action.

Description:  The Village sought a qualified contractor to conduct a water assessment of our water system which 
includes the following services:  

Fire Hydrant Maintenance, operate and inspect a portion of our hydrants in our water system for problems. 
 Inspections are performed on 1,150, roughly one-third, of the Village’s hydrants.  

Fire Hydrant Flow Testing, check pressure and volume of water flowing from hydrant. 
 Full flow operation on one-fifth, approximately 700 hydrants, to ensure the water main capacity is in 

accordance with ISO, NFPA, and AWWA requirements.
Water System Leak Survey, detecting non-visible leaks in our water system. 

 Use instrumentation on water valves, hydrants, and water services to listen for leaks.  If leaks are found, 
use leak correlation machine to pinpoint leaks. Approximately 130 miles of water main is surveyed each 
year for leaks.

Valve Exercising, operate and inspect a portion of valves in our water system for problems.
 Locate, operate, and inspect 1025 or one-third of the Village’s water valves each year.

Background:  RFQs were received in FY2019 with the contract awarded to M.E. Simpson.  The contract was 
written to be renewable for four years.  FY2021 will be the second contract renewal. 

Budget/ Finance:  Funding in the amount of $149,300.00 is available in approved FY2021 Budget. 

Staff Direction Request:   Approve renewing the contract with M.E. Simpson Co. in the amount of $149,300.00.
 
Attachments:

1. Letter of recommendation 
2. Professional Service Agreement
3. Contractor Letter of Continuation

Interoffice

Memo
Page | 497AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

July 2, 2018 

Mayor and Trustees 
Village of Tinley Park 
16250 South Oak Park Ave 
Tinley Park, Il 60477 

Subject: Village of Tinley Park - Water System Assessment – 2018 – RFQ - 007 

Dear Mayor and Trustees, 

Qualifications packets were received for the Project on June 19, 2018 at 4:30PM from the following 

firms: 

 National Power Rodding, Chicago, IL 

 M.E. Simpson Co., Inc., Valparaiso, IN 

Qualifications were evaluated based on the level of creativity, differentiation, and measurability of 

six categories: 

1. Scope of Work, Project Approach, and Project Management; 

2. Experience of Key Personnel; 

3. Firm Experience; 

4. Overall Evaluation of Firm’s Ability to Complete the Project; 

5. Pricing; 

6. Client List and References.  

 

We have analyzed each of the submittals and find M.E. Simpson Co, Inc. to be both the highest 

qualified and the lowest priced firm. We recommend the Village negotiate a professional services 

agreement with M.E. Simpson Co, Inc.  

 

Please advise us of your decision. 

Sincerely, 

BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC. 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 
 

 
Sean O’Dell, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
SEO:lms 

Page | 498AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 
 

 

Michael D. Simpson 
Chief Executive Officer 

 
3406 Enterprise Avenue 

Valparaiso, IN  46383 
 

800.255.1521 P 
888.531.2444 F 

 
Michael.Simpson@mesimpson.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
July 31, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Joe Fitzpatrick 
Water Superintendent 
Village of Tinley Park 
16250 Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 
 
RE:  CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR WATER ASSESSMENT PROGRAM 
 
Dear Mr. Fitzpatrick, 
 
M.E. Simpson Company, Inc. would welcome the opportunity to continue providing services for the 
Village of Tinley Park, Illinois and extend the Water System Assessment Program.  We appreciate the 
opportunity to extend this contract and provide our services to the Village of Tinley Park on their Water 
Distribution System. 

Thank you for allowing us to serve the Village and work with the Water System Operations team.  
Should you have questions or need additional information please don’t hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

 
Michael D. Simpson 
Chief Executive Officer 

Page | 499AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

SERVICE CONTRACT 

This contract is by and between the Village of Tinley Park, a Illinois home-rule municipal 

corporation (the "Village"), and M.E. Simpson Company, Inc. (the "Contractor"), for the project 

or work described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

1. In consideration of the compensation stated in paragraph 2, the Contractor shall provide all 
the services described in the Scope of Services attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and 
incorporated herein by reference. The express terms of this Contract shall take precedence 
and control over any term or provision of the Scope of Services (Exhibit A) that in any way 
conflicts with, differs from, or attempts to alter the terms of this Contract.

2. Except in the event of a duly authorized change order approved by the Village as 
provided in this Contract, and in consideration of the Contractor's final completion of all 
work in conformity with this Contract, the Village shall pay the Contractor an amount not 
to exceed One Hundred Forty Nine Thousand Three Hundred and 00/100 Dollars 
($149,300.00). Within seven (7) calendar days of completion of the work, the 
Contractor shall submit his application for payment to the Village, and the Village shall 
pay Contractor for the work performed no later than thirty (30) calendar days from the 
date of the Village's receipt and the Village's approval of the work and the application for 
payment. No payment shall be made by the Village until the Contractor has submitted to 
the Village (i) a Contractor's Affidavit listing all subcontractors and material suppliers 
utilized on the project and (ii) final waivers of lien from the Contractor, all subcontractors 
and all material suppliers.

3. No changes shall be made, nor will invoices for changes, alterations, modifications, 
deviations, or extra work or services be recognized or paid except upon the prior written 
order from authorized personnel of the Village. The Contractor shall not execute change 
orders on behalf of the Village or otherwise alter the financial scope of the Project.

4. Written change orders may be approved by the Village Manager or his designee provided 
that the change order does not increase the amount set forth in paragraph 2 of this Contract 
to more than $10,000.00. Changes in excess of this amount must be approved by the 
Village Board prior to commencement of the services or work. Any request by the 
Contractor for an increase in the Scope of Services and an increase in the amount 
listed in paragraph 2 of this Contract shall be made and approved by the Village 
prior to the Contractor providing such services or the right to payment for such 
additional services shall be waived.

5. Time is of the essence on this Contract. The Contractor shall complete all work under 
this Contract by the dates set forth below: 

6. No "Notice to Proceed" may be given nor any work commenced until this Contract is fully
executed and all exhibits and other attachments are completely filled out and attached
hereto.

241378_1 

Page | 500AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 501AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 502AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 503AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 504AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 505AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 506AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 507AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 508AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2020-R-084

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK AND M. E. SIMPSON CO. FOR THE WATER ASSESSMENT PROGRAM 

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

_____________________________________________________________________________________
Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park

Page | 509AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-084    

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 
TINLEY PARK AND M. E. SIMPSON CO. FOR THE WATER ASSESSMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule Unit 

pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have considered entering into an contract with M. E. Simpson Co., a true and correct copy of such 

Agreement being attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that said contract be 

entered into by the Village of Tinley Park; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions of, this 

Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park hereby find 

that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the aforesaid "contract” be 

entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said contract to be substantially in the form 

attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1, subject to review and revision as to form by the 

Village Attorney.

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, 

Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park the aforesaid 

contract.

Page | 510AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED this 1st day of September, 2020, by the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley 

Park on a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 1st day of September, 2020, by the President of the Village of Tinley Park.

                                                           
                 Village President

ATTEST:

___________________________
Village Clerk

Page | 511AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



EXHIBIT 1
Page | 512AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK ) SS

COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

     I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2020-R-084, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT RENEWAL 

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND M. E. SIMPSON CO. FOR THE WATER 

ASSESSMENT PROGRAM,” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Tinley Park on September 1, 2020.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 1st day of September, 2020.

____________________________________
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK 

Page | 513AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

STAFF 
COMMENT 

 

Page | 514AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
BOARD 

COMMENT 
 

Page | 515AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 

Page | 516AGENDA - 9/1/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS: 

A. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, 
DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC 
EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR 
THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A 
COMPLAINT LODGED AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE 
PUBLIC BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE 
PUBLIC BODY TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY. 
 

B. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE 
OF THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A PARTICULAR PARCEL 
SHOULD BE ACQUIRED. 
 

C. THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY 
OWNED BY THE PUBLIC BODY. 
 
 


	090120 Meeting Notice
	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	Agenda Page 7 
	Agenda Page 8 
	Agenda Page 9 
	Agenda Page 10 
	Agenda Page 11
	ITEM #2 - Draft Meeting Minutes
	ITEM #3 - Trustee Brennan
	ITEM #4 - President Vandenberg
	ITEM #5 - Trustee Berg
	ITEM #6 - President Vandenberg
	ITEM #7 - Consent A
	Item #7 - Consent B
	ITEM #8 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #9 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #10 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #11 - Trustee Mueller 
	ITEM #12 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #13 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #14 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #15 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #16 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #17 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #18 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #19 - Staff Comment
	ITEM #20 - Board Comment
	ITEM #21 - Public Comment
	Executive Session 



